


1

1 Notice of meeting 2

2 Corporate Information 3

3 Chairman’s Review 4

4 Board of Directors 5

5 Report of the Directors 8

6 Corporate Governance 10

7 Report of the Audit Committee 11

8 Report of the Remuneration Committee 11

9 Report of the Related Party Transaction Reporting Committee  11

10 Shareholders’ Information 12

11 Key Financial Highlights 14

12 Financial Review 15

13 Ten year Summary 17

14 Directors Responsibility for Financial Reporting 18

15 Chairman’s and Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibility Statement  18
  
16 Report of the Auditors   19

17 Statement of Comprehensive Income 20

18 Statement of Financial Position 21

19 Statement of Changes in Equity 22

20 Statement of Cash Flows 24

21 Notes to the Financial Statements 25

22 Summarized Quarterly Statistics 60

23 Statement of Value Added 60

24 Notes 61

25 Form of Proxy                                                                                                                     63 

TABLE OF 

CONTENTS



2

NOTICE OF

MEETING

NOTICE OF MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE TWENTY SECOND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company will be held on Wednesday, 30th July 2014 
at 10.30 a.m. in the Auditorium of the Excel World Entertainment Park, No. 338, T B Jayah Mawatha, Colombo 10 for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the Report of the Directors and Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2014 with the 
Report of the Auditors thereon. 

2. To re-elect as a Director D.S.K. Amarasekera who retires by rotation in terms of Article 86 of the Articles of Association of the 
Company.

3. To re-elect as a Director Prof. M.T.A. Furkhan who retires in terms of Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.  Special Notice 
has been received from a shareholder of the intention to pass a resolution which is set out below in relation to his re-election      
(see note 4 below).

4. To re-elect as a Director J.M. Swaminathan who retires in terms of Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007. Special Notice 
has been received from a shareholder of the intention to pass a resolution which is set out below in relation to his re-election     
(see note 5 below).

5. To re-appoint as auditors KPMG, Chartered Accountants at a remuneration to be agreed by the Directors.

 By order of the Board

 EDEN HOTEL LANKA PLC

 Miss Chrishanthi Emmanuel

 DIRECTOR - LOLC CORPORATE SERVICES �PVT� LTD

 Secretaries

 4th July 2014

 Rajagiriya (in the greater Colombo)

NOTE:

1) A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her. A Proxy 
need not be a member of the Company.

2) The completed Form of Proxy should be received by the Company at its registered office, 100/1, Sri Jayawardenapura Mawatha 
Rajagiriya, not later than 10.30 am on 28th July 2014.

3) A Form of Proxy accompanies this Notice.

4) Special Notice was received from a shareholder giving Notice of intention to move the following Resolution at the above Annual 
General Meeting :

  “Resolved that Prof. M.T.A. Furkhan who reached the age of 70 years in 2005, be and is hereby re-elected a Director of the Company 
and it is further specifically declared that the age limit of 70 years referred to in Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 
shall not apply to the said Director, Prof. M.T.A. Furkhan.”

5) Special Notice was received by the Company from a shareholder of  the Company giving Notice of intention to move the following 
Resolution at the above Annual General Meeting :

 “Resolved that J.M. Swaminathan who reached the age of 70 years in 2011, be and is hereby re-elected a Director of the Company 
and it is further specifically declared that the age limit of 70 years referred to in Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 
shall not apply to the said Director, J.M. Swaminathan”
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Name of Company : EDEN HOTEL LANKA PLC

Date of Incorporation : 13th January 1992

Legal Form  : A Public Quoted Company with Limited Liability

Company Registration No : PQ 199

Stock Exchange Listing : The Ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange of Sri Lanka

Directors  : W.D.K. Jayawardena - Non-Executive Chairman

    Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe -  Non-Executive Director

    D.S.K. Amarasekera -  Independent Director

    Prof. M.T.A. Furkhan -  Non-Executive Director

    S. Furkhan -  Non-Executive Director

    J. M. Swaminathan -  Independent Director

Audit Committee : J. M. Swaminathan -  Committee Chairman, Independent Director

    W. D. K. Jayawardena -  Non-Executive Director 

    Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe  - Non-Executive Director

    D.S.K. Amarasekera - Independent Director    

 

Remuneration Committee : J.M. Swaminathan -  Committee Chairman, Independent Director

    Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe -  Non-Executive Director

    D.S.K. Amarasekera - Independent Director 

Related Party Transaction  : J. M.Swaminathan -  Committee Chairman, Independent Director

Reporting Committee   W.D.K. Jayawardena -  Non-Executive Director 

    Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe  -  Non-Executive Director

Registered Office : 100/1, Sri JayawardenapuraMawatha, 

  Rajagiriya, Sri Lanka.

  Tel: +94 11 5880880 
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Company Secretary : Miss Chrishanthi S. Emmanuel, FCIS, FCCS

  (Stepped down w.e.f. 2nd May 2014)

  LOLC Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd

  Appointed w.e.f. 2nd May 2014)

  

Auditors : KPMG 
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Lawyers : Nithya Partners

  Attorneys-at-Law   

Registrars :  P W Corporate Secretarial (Pvt) Ltd
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Bankers : Bank of Ceylon

  Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

  Deutsche Bank

  Nations Trust Bank PLC

  Standard Chartered Bank

  Sampath Bank PLC

  DFCC Bank

    Seylan Bank PLC

Subsidiaries  : Dickwella Resorts (Pvt) Ltd.

  Directors   -  K.A.K.P. Gunawardena  

        J.B.W. Kelegama

        P.D.G. Jayasena
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CHAIRMAN’S

REVIEW

It is with pleasure that I present to you the annual report of your 
company, for the year ended 31st March 2014. 

The tourism sector has been experiencing impressive growth both 
in terms of tourist arrivals and in foreign exchange revenues since 
2009 with the end of the 30 year conflict in the North and the East.
The Government has identified tourism as a key growth sector with 
an ambitious target of attracting 2.5 million visitors by 2016 and 
has been pivotal in executing this strategy, by attracting top tier 
tourism and hotel investors to the country. Foreign investments are 
being made by global luxury hotel companies  like the Shangri-La 
Group (Hong Kong/Singapore), India’s upscale ITC Group, Thailand’s 
Minor Group, Spain’s RIU Hotels & Resorts, Singapore’s Aman 
Resorts, Banyan Tree Group Singapore and the Mustafa Group of 
Singapore. International brands such as the Sheraton brand of 
Starwood Hotels and Resorts, Marriott International, Hyatt Hotels 
Corporation, Movenpick Hotels & Resorts Management and Onyx 
Hospitality Group have signed management agreements with local 
hotel companies.

Considering significant growth in the industry, the prestigious global 
travel publication and the largest travel guide book and digital 
media publisher in the world “Lonely Planet”, ranked Sri Lanka 
as the Best Country to Visit in 2013. Lonely Planet states that, 
“Investment is fuelling the tourism industry and visitor numbers are 
steadily increasing. Prices are affordable and with affordable flights 
from the convenient travel hub of Bangkok, Sri Lanka is emerging as 
one of the planet’s best value destinations.”

Competition is intensifying within the existing properties and many 
are being added as luxury hotels around the country. The opening 
up of the North and the East, especially the East has added a new 
dimension to the tourism sector in Sri Lanka with beach properties 
attracting the global markets throughout the year compared with 
one season in the past.  

In line with the above, Eden Hotel Lanka PLC (Eden) faced intensive 
competition as a luxury hotel placed along the prestigious golden 
mile in the Southern coast of the country with several other luxury 
hotels being commissioned. Considering this, an upgrade in the 
hotel was launched in May 2013 and the hotel was closed for three 
months to complete the refurbishment of the rooms with significant 
improvements to the facilities and all key areas of the hotel were 
improved enhancing the value proposition of the property.

As a result of the closure, there was a reduction in the overall 
occupancy of the hotel during the period, however, during the winter 
season there was a significant increase in occupancy and revenues. 
The total cost incurred on the refurbishment was Rs. 400Mn. 

Strengthening the overall value proposition of the Company and 
the strong financial position, Eden acquired Dickwella Resorts (Pvt) 
Ltd.,(Dickwella) a 76 roomed hotel located  down South. This property 
is unique as a result of its location, with the bay surrounding the 
hotel. The investment made to acquire this property was Rs.1.5Bn. 
Dickwella is expected to deliver good returns in the medium to long 

term with limited upgrades being made to the hotel. 

The Company borrowed Rs. 1.5Bn from Seylan Bank Plc to fund the 
refurbishment and part financing the acquisition and as a result 
impacted the profitability of the company. However, the Company 
recorded Rs. 614Mn as revenues and Rs.28Mn as PBT. As a result 
of the refurbishment, the value of the Eden property increased and 
the revalued amount of Rs.4.9Bn is reflected as in the statement of 
financial position.

Eden won several awards during the year, among which was the 
Travellers’ choice award for 2014 by the renowned travel review 
website – Trip Advisor. 

The Company also continued  its CSR initiatives and launched a 
building project, which involved  the construction of a new building 
for the Redhill Moragalla school. The new building will provide a 
much needed classroom space for the school’s junior section.

The refurbishment and the investment in Dickwella, places 
the Company in a strong position to benefit from the positive 
developments happening in the tourism sector in Sri Lanka, 
enhancing profitability and capital appreciation in the long term. 
The strong foundation placed in the concluded financial year will 
boost the Company’s standing in competing with the emerging 
competition in the region and in the country. 

I wish to extend my sincere gratitude to the management and staff 
of Eden and Dickwella for their continuous commitment to provide 
the guests a memorable stay in our properties. I also extend my 
sincere appreciation to the Board of Directors for their long term 
vision and continuous support extended to the Company.

Kapila Jayawardena

Chairman 
Eden Hotel Lanka PLC
27th May 2014.
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W.D.K. Jayawardena

Mr. Kapila Jayawardena counts over thirty two years’ experience in 
Banking, Financial Management and Corporate Management. Mr. 
Jayawardena was appointed as the Group Managing Director/CEO of 
Lanka ORIX Leasing Company PLC in 2007. He was the former CEO/
Country Head of Citibank N.A. Sri Lanka and Maldives.

Mr. Jayawardena has played a pivotal role in the banking sector 
contributing to the financial market reforms, development and 
regularly advising regulators on prudential requirements and has 
widespread experience in introducing innovative financial service 
products to the market. 

LOLC Group is one of the largest conglomerates in Sri Lanka with 
presence in diversified industries such as Financial Services, Trading, 
Manufacturing, Construction, Leisure and Renewable Energy.    

As an individual with extensive International and domestic financial 
experience, Mr. Jayawardena was a key member of the following 
committees:  

of the Financial Services Reforms Committee (FSRC) 2003/ 2004 

automated clearing project  for the Sri Lankan banking industry 2004

sident of the American Chamber of Commerce Sri Lanka 2006/2007 

of the United States - Sri Lanka Fulbright Commission

Presently, Mr. Jayawardena holds Chairmanship/Directorship in the 
following companies: 

–
Insurance Company Limited –
Limited – –
Italia (Pvt) Ltd – – 

Insurance Ltd – – Director 
– Director Brown & Company 

PLC –

Resorts (Pvt) Ltd – Director

Qualifications  : Master of Business Administration, American 
University of Asia Fellow of the Institute of Bankers’ Sri Lanka 
Associate of the Institute of Cost and Executive Accountants,  London.

BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS

Mrs. Kalsha Amarasinghe holds an Honours Degree in Economics.

She serves on the Boards of Lanka ORIX Leasing Company PLC, 
Lanka ORIX Finance PLC, LOLC Micro Credit Ltd, LOLC Insurance Co. 
Ltd, United Dendro Energy (Pvt) Ltd, Palm Garden Hotels PLC and 
Riverina Resorts (Pvt) Ltd. 

She also serves as a Director on the Boards of Commercial Leasing 
& Finance PLC, Brown & Company PLC and Browns Investments PLC.

Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe
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Mr. Kamantha Amarasekera is a member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and is an Attorney-at-Law of 
the Supreme Court of Sri Lanka. He also holds a degree in Business 
Administration from the University of Sri Jayawardenapura and 
began his career in the year 1998.

Mr. Amarasekera is an eminent Tax Consultant and the Senior 
Tax and Legal Partner of Amarasekera & Company, a leading tax 
consultancy firm in Sri Lanka.

Prof. Furkhan is the Founder of the Confifi Group of Companies and 
held the position of Chairman of all the Companies in the Group 
from the very inception in 1969. He holds the Degrees of FCMA 
(UK), CGMA, J. Dip. MA, FCIS (UK), FCPA (Aust.) and FCCS (SL). He 
has been elected twice as President of CIMA Sri Lanka, President, 
CMIA New South Wales, Australia, Institute of Chartered Corporate 
Secretaries, Institute of Management, Rotary Club of Colombo 
North and a number of other institutions. He has been recognized 
and awarded the CIMA INSTITUTE PLAQUE, CIMA CITATION and the 
Institute of Chartered Secretaries UK CITATION.

He was awarded the first ever CLMA Business Leader Award in the 
year 2003, Entrepreneur of the year 1994 -Second Place in the 
Western Province by the FCCISL and was given the  Tourism Legend 
Award by H.E. the President of Sri Lanka.

In addition to his business interests, Prof. Furkhan has maintained 
regular and long-standing interest in the academe. While being a 
regular lecturer in Accountancy and Management subjects, he has 

held the position of Professor of Management Accounting of the 
University of Sri Jayewardenepura, Sri Lanka and Principal of Zahira 
College, Colombo.

Prof. Furkhan has held office in various professional bodies, 
Government Institutions, State Corporations and Private Sector 
Business Associations, including the Chamber of Commerce, 
Federation of Chambers of Commerce and Industry and as President 
of the Tourist Hotels Association of Sri Lanka.

Prof. Furkhan has been a member of the Independent National 
Police Commission of Sri Lanka and the Finance Commission of 
Sri Lanka. He was a member of the Council of the Postgraduate 
Institute of Management and the Council of the South Eastern 
University of Sri Lanka. In recognition of the services rendered to 
education and generally to the country, H.E. the President of Sri 
Lanka awarded him the title of Deshabandu in 1987 and was later 
conferred the title of Deshamanya in 2005.

BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS 
�CONTD�

D.S.K. Amarasekera

Deshamanya Prof. MT.A. Furkhan



7

Mr. Stefan Furkhan having had his initial training in Germany and 
Australia, possesses over 25 years of experience in the tourism and 
hospitality industry in Australia and Sri Lanka.

He is a Graduate Diploma Holder and Fellow Member of the 
Chartered Institute of Marketing, UK (CIM), the premier professional 
marketing body in the world, and a Fellow Member of the Institute 
of Hospitality, UK. Mr. Furkhan was a former Vice President of the 
Tourist Hotels Association of Sri Lanka (THASL), and the Chairman 
of its Marketing Sub-Committee. He also served on the PATA Sri 
Lanka Chapter Board.

Mr. Furkhan has had extensive experience in the setting up, Project 
Management and Launching of new Green Field Hotel Projects in

Sri Lanka, Bangladesh and Australia. He also functioned as the 
Managing Director of the Confifi Group Hotels until recently.

During his career he has been instrumental in identifying and 
introducing several new concepts to the Tourism Industry in Sri 
Lanka. He was awarded the Winner of the Chartered Institute of 
Marketing, Marketers Awards 2001, in recognition of his marketing 
efforts in the Hospitality Industry.

Mr. Furkhan is currently Chairman of Confifi Capital (Pvt) Ltd., and 
related companies and director of Eden Hotel Lanka PLC since 
incorporation in January, 1992. He is also a promoter and director of 
the OZO Colombo and OZO Kandy Hotels.

 
Mr. Swaminathan holds LLD, LLM and M Phil from the University 
of Colombo and LLB from the University of Ceylon.  He is also 
Attorney-at-Law, Sri Lanka Law College, Justice of the Peace and 
Unofficial Magistrate.

He is the Precedent Partner of Messrs. Julius & Creasy and is a 
Member of the Company Law Advisory Commission, a Member of 
the Intellectual Property Law Commission.  He was a Member of 
the Council of Legal Education and Law Commission of Sri Lanka.  
He is a Faculty Member of the Faculty of Law of the University of 

Colombo and a Member of the Legal Cluster of National Economic 
Commission.  He is a Visiting Lecturer and an Examiner at the 
Faculty of Law, University of Colombo.  He is also a  Member of 
the  Board of Faculty of Law, University of Colombo.  He was also 
a Faculty Member of the LLM Wales Course conducted by the Sri 
Lanka Law College and a Faculty Member and Course Director of 
Post Attorneys Diploma Program on  Intellectual Property Law and 
is 49 years in practice. He is also a Director of several listed and 
unlisted companies.

BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS 

�CONTD�

S. Furkhan

J.M. Swaminathan
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REPORT OF THE 

DIRECTORS

The Directors take pleasure in presenting this Annual Report 

and believe that the  reports together with the  audited financial 

statements for the year ended 31st March, 2014 will provide a 

balanced and comprehensive view of the Company .  

Principal activity

The Company is carrying on the business of a Hotelier.  

Directorate 

The Directors of the Company during the year under review were 

as follows :

W.D.K. Jayawardena  - Non Executive Chairman

Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe - Non Executive Director 

Professor M.T.A. Furkhan - Non Executive Director

S. Furkhan - Non Executive Director

J. M. Swaminathan  - Independent  Director

D.S.K. Amarasekera - Independent  Director

  

The profiles of the Directors are given on pages 05  to 07.  

In terms of Article 86 of the Articles of Association of the Company  

D.S.K. Amarasekera retires by rotation and offers himself for re-

election. The Directors recommend that he be re-elected. 

The Company has  received notice from a shareholder of its 

intention to move a resolution to re-elect as a Director Prof. M.T.A. 

Furkhan who retires in terms of Section 210 of the Companies Act 

No. 7 of 2007, being over 70 years of age. The Directors recommend 

his re-election. 

The Company has also received notice from a shareholder 

of its intention to move a resolution to re-elect as a Director                                  

J.M. Swaminathan who retires in terms of Section 210 of the 

Companies Act No. 7 of 2007,  being over the age of 70 years.  The 

Directors recommend his  re-election. 

Directors’ shareholdings 

The Directors’ shareholdings were as follows :

 As at   As at

 31.03.2014     % 31.03.2013    %

W.D.K. Jayawardena  - - -  -

Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe - - -  -

Professor M.T.A. Furkhan 103,237 0.20 103,237 0.20

S.Furkhan 1 - 1  -

J.M. Swaminathan - - -  -

D.S.K. Amarasekera - - -  -

Directors interests 

Directors interests are disclosed in the notes to the accounts  

(page 57).  

 

Board sub - committees

To assist with oversight of the Company’s performance and 

conformance, the Board has appointed three sub-committees, the  

Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Related 

Party Transaction Reporting Committee. The Reports of these  

Committees can be found on page  11.

Review of business

The Hotel closed  briefly during the  off peak season, to  complete 

the rolling refurbishment which had begun previously. Apart 

from having its rooms upgraded, the Hotel has opened two new  

restaurants,  further improved the pool and pool bar and enhanced 

guest enjoyment of  the outdoor  areas with additional seating 

and improved sea views. Bookings can now be made through the  

Hotel’s web site. This facility has proved to be very popular with 

clients, and contributes towards the high occupancy rates the Hotel 

enjoys. 

As in the past several years, the Hotel won the Certificate of 

Excellence  awarded by Trip Advisor and was the winner of the  

“Travelers’ Choice”  award for 2014, with  80% of those reviewed  

ranking the Hotel Number One among the hotels in Beruwala.

The Board Hotel recognizes that these achievements are due to 

the contributions of the  employees, and  makes every endeavor 

to  ensure that employee retention is given priority. HR reports 

are discussed quarterly and remuneration packages are reviewed 

to ensure that they remain competitive. There is continuous staff 

development through training, which not only improves the quality 

of service, but also upli�s morale and contributes to retention. 

During refurbishments, the staff quarters were also improved, to 

further emphasize the important given to human resources.  

Investment in Dickwella Resorts (Pvt) Ltd 

During the year, the Company  invested in Dickwella Resorts (Pvt) 

Ltd, thereby acquiring Dickwella Resorts & Spa. This 76 room, fully 

functioning Hotel  has  a full service spa and a diving centre. Other 

attractions include  family suites  and a sea water swimming pool.  

As the  Hotel has sea frontage on three  sides, every room has a 

sea view.

Environmental responsibility  

The Hotel  subscribes to the “Environmental Charter”,  established 

in 2000 and  periodically updated.  In line with this Charter, the 

Hotel works with the Beruwala Hoteliers Association  to promote  

the cleaning,  protection  and responsible use of the “Golden Mile”  

stretch of  beach along the Beruwala coast.

This will not only contribute to guest enjoyment and the resultant 

impact on the hotel’s occupancy, it will also ensure that the this 

stretch of coastline can continue to provide a sustainable livelihood 

for all those in the leisure industry.   

Going concern 

The Directors believe that the Company is in a position to  continue 

its operations in the  foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Financial 

Statements are prepared on the  basis that the Company is a going 

concern .



9

Responsibility statements 

The Chairman’s and Chief Financial Officer’s responsibility statement 

appears on page 18. The Directors’ responsibility statement appears 

on  page 18.

Significant accounting policies 

The significant accounting policies  adopted when preparing these 

financial statements and any changes thereof if applicable are  

given on pages  25  to  36.

Statutory payments 

For the year under review, all known statutory payments have been 

made and all retirement gratuities have been provided for. Further, 

all management fees and payments to related parties for the year 

under review have been reflected in the accounts. 

Donations

The Company made no donations during the year. The Hotel follows 

the philosophy of playing a beneficial role in the community  

wherever possible by helping to meet the needs of the local 

schools, temples and hospitals as and when the needs arise.  

Auditors

The Auditors, KPMG retire, and offer themselves for re-appointment. 

The Board recommends their re-appointment for the year 2014/2015, 

at a fee to be decided upon by the Board.

During the year under review, the Auditors were paid  Rs.565,000 /- as 

audit fees. 

As far as the Directors are aware, the Auditors do not have any 

other relationship with the Company or any of its subsidiaries  nor 

do they have any interest in contracts with the Company or any of 

its subsidiaries. 

Auditors Report 

The Auditors report appears on page 19.

Property 

Details of the Company’s properties are  found on page 41.

Compliance with laws and regulations 

The Company has not engaged in any activity that  contravenes any 

applicable law or  regulation.  

Corporate Governance 

The Board subscribes to the principles of corporate governance.  

The Corporate Governance Report is on page 10.   

The Company is compliant with the  Corporate  Governance 

Requirements of the Listing  Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange.

Risk Management 

The Risk Management review can be found on pages 58 to 59.

Annual General Meeting 

The notice of meeting is included in this Annual Report.  If you are 

unable to be present at the Meeting, please  complete and return 

the proxy form to the Company, as  instructed thereon.

W.D.K.  Jayawardena

Chairman

Miss Chrishanthi Emmanuel

DIRECTOR � LOLC CORPORATE SERVICES �PVT� LTD

Secretaries 

REPORT OF THE 

DIRECTORS 
�CONTD�
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CORPORATE 

GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors believe that performance should be 

complimented and supported by conformance. The Directors’ Report 

and Committee Reports, together with this Report would provide 

details on the steps taken to ensure conformance.  The financial 

statements and reviews will provide you with an understanding of 

the Company’s performance.

Board of Directors

The Board comprises six Directors, all of whom are non-executive, 

and two of whom are independent. The Board reviewed the 

independence of D.S.K. Amarasekera and J.M. Swaminathan and 

agreed that the professionalism, expertise and experience of these 

two directors enable them to function as independent directors on 

this Board.

More details on the Directors are given in the Directors’ Report, 

including their shareholdings. Their profiles are on pages 5 to 7.

At every Board meeting, the General Manager is invited to report on 

the progress and performance of the hotel.   Following the acquisition 

of Dickwella Resorts and Spa, the performance of that hotel is also 

reported upon. As the Chief Financial Officer is also invited to be 

present at these board meetings, performance improvement 

methods, processes and controls can also be discussed and 

strengthened or modified where necessary. The Company benefits 

from the shared services provided by the LOLC Group, including 

specialized services such as IT and HR management. Risk reviews 

and internal audits are also carried out by the Group Enterprise 

Risk Management Division and their reports are discussed by the 

Audit Committee. The macro economic conditions and the leisure 

industry are discussed so that opportunities can be optimized and 

potential threats successfully overcome. 

If for operational reasons Board approval is required in between 

scheduled board meetings,extra meetings are convened, or circular 

resolutions, supported by board papers, are utilized.

Board and the Sub-committee Membership:

The Board has also appointed three sub committees, the Audit 

Committee,the Remuneration Committee and the Related Party 

Transactions Reporting Committee. The Audit Committee reviews 

the interim financials and also meets with the External Auditors to 

discuss any areas of concern they may have. 

Please refer the Committee reports on page 11 for further details.

Stakeholders 

The Board is conscious of its relationship with all stakeholders, 

including the community within which it operates. Apart from striving 

to be a model corporate citizen, with sustainable and eco-friendly 

practices, the hotel enhances and upli�s staff standards and morale 

through regular training and improved facilities. This facilitates 

improvements in service levels, thereby enriching guest experience. 

Satisfied guests, apart from providing repeat business, also act as 

ambassadors for the hotels .

There has been much positive feedback from guests on the 

refurbishments carried out.

Annual General Meeting 

The Annual General Meeting has been scheduled for 30th July 2014.

If you are unable to attend the meeting, you may appoint a proxy to 

attend on your behalf. Please complete and return the Proxy form 

as directed. 

Compliance with regulations

The Company is compliant with the Corporate Governance 

requirements of the Colombo Stock Exchange.

Names Classifications Board
Audit 

Committee

Remuneration 

Committee

Related Party 

Transaction  

Reporting 

Committee

W.D.K. Jayawardena Non-Executive Chairman ✓ ✓   -  ✓
Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe Non-Executive Director ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓
D.S.K. Amarasekera Independent Director ✓ ✓ ✓ -

Prof. M.T.A. Furkhan Non-Executive Director ✓ - - -

S. Furkhan Non-Executive Director ✓ - - -

J.M. Swaminathan Independent Director ✓      ✓ ***      ✓ ***      ✓ ***

*** Committee Chairman
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The Audit Committee comprises J.M. Swaminathan (Committee 
Chairman, Independent Director), W.D.K. Jayawardena (Non-
Executive Director), Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe (Non-Executive Director) 
and D.S.K. Amarasekera (Independent Director) who was appointed 
with effect from 13th June 2014.

During the financial year 2013/14, the Committee met to review the 
interim financial statements and the year-end financial statements, 
and recommend them to the Board for approval prior to these 
statements being released to the Colombo Stock Exchange. The 
Committee also met twice with the External Auditors, who were 
invited to discuss any areas of concern.  

The Audit Committee invites the Chief Financial Officer and Chief 
Risk Officer to attend these audit committee meetings. This enables 
issues (including Internal Audit reports) to be discussed and 
rectifying measures agreed on expeditiously. The General Manager 
of the hotel, and the Head of Human Resources are also invited 
when relevant to the deliberations and decision making. 

The Audit Committee has recommended that KPMG be re-appointed 
auditors for the ensuing financial year. This is subject to shareholder 
approval at the Annual General Meeting.

J.M. Swaminathan 
Chairman - Audit Committee 

approval at the Annual General M

J M Swaminathan

The Remuneration Committee comprises J.M. Swaminathan 
(Independent Director) Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe (Non-Executive 
Director) and D.S.K. Amarasekera  (Independent Director) who was 
appointed to the Committee with effect from 13th June 2014.

The Committee is chaired by J.M. Swaminathan.

As a part of its mandate, the Committee ensures that remuneration 
for the hotel staff is commensurate with their skills and expertise 
and also on par with industry standards.  

The Committee has approved a remuneration policy. The policy 
recognizes  the need for remuneration to be competitive in the 
market, to attract, motivate and retain human resources and to 
encourage and reward high levels of performance and achievement 
of corporate goals and objectives.  

The Committee has also noted that the staff are constantly 
being trained, to further develop their skills, thus increasing their 
effectiveness and efficiency.

The Committee met twice during the year under review.

J.M. Swaminathan
Chairman - Remuneration Committee

REPORT OF 

THE AUDIT 

COMMITTEE

The Colombo Stock Exchange, in response to a directive from 
the Securities and Exchange Commission has requested that all 
listed Companies establish a Related Party Transaction Reporting 
Committee (RPTR Committee).  Though this requirement has a 
transition period of 2 years and need not be set up until 2016, 

the Board decided on early compliance and appointed the RPTR 
Committee.   

The Committee comprises J.M. Swaminathan, Independent Director 
who is also the Committee Chairman, W.D.K. Jayawardena and       
Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe. 

J.M. Swaminathan 
Related Party Transaction Reporting Committee

Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe. 

REPORT OF THE 

REMUNERATION

COMMITTEE

REPORT OF THE 
RELATED PARTY 
TRANSACTION 
REPORTING 
COMMITTEE
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SHARE

HOLDERS’ 

INFORMATION

1)      SHAREHOLDINGS

      The 20 largest shareholders of the Company as at 31st March were as follows. 

Name of Shareholder

2014 2013

No. of 
Shares

�%�
No. of 
Shares

�%�

1 PALM GARDEN HOTELS PLC  24,398,472 46.21  24,398,472 46.21

2 CONFIFI MANAGEMENT SERVICES �PRIVATE� LTD  5,647,507 10.70  5,647,507 10.70

3 EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND  5,092,283 9.64  5,058,630 9.58

4 DR.R R DE SILVA  1,939,715 3.67  1,127,317 2.14

5 EMPLOYEES TRUST FUND BOARD  1,581,943 3.00  1,581,943 3.00

6 MERCANTILE INVESTMENTS AND FINANCE PLC  1,049,600 1.99  1,049,600 1.99

7 CONFIFI INVESTMENTS �PVT� LTD  912,030 1.73  912,030 1.73

8 BANK OF CEYLON NO.1 ACCOUNT  609,600 1.16  609,600 1.16

9 COMMERCIAL BANK OF CEYLON PLC/ D S L INVESTMENTS �PVT� LTD  572,000 1.08  567,000 1.07

10 BANK OF CEYLON NO. 2 A/C  480,000 0.91  480,000 0.91

11 NATIONAL SAVINGS BANK  477,900 0.91  477,900 0.91

12 D S L INVESTMENTS �PRIVATE� LTD  329,120 0.62  329,120 0.62

13 W.C.A. WIMALADHARMA  296,052 0.56  296,052 0.56

14 MRS. B. WIMALADHARMA  275,000 0.52  275,000 0.52

15 MR. M.I. RAJI  274,093 0.52  274,093 0.52

16 DEE INVESTMENTS �PVT� LTD  250,000 0.47  - -

17 MR. M.J.M. ANSAR  216,784 0.41  216,784 0.41

18 UNION INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LTD  191,000 0.36  191,000 0.36

19 DFCC VARDHANA BANK PLC/ A SITHAMPALAM  173,200 0.33  173,200 0.33

20 MERCHANT BANK OF SRI LANKA PLC  A/C NO 1  166,243 0.31  - -

 44,932,542 85.10  - -

OTHERS  7,867,458 14.90  - -

TOTAL 52,800,000 100.00 - -

2) PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

As at 31st March 2014, 42.73% (2012/13 - 42.9%) of the issued ordinary shares were held by the public.

Range

2014 2013

No. of 
Share holders

No. of
Shares

  % of 
Shares

No. of 
Share holders

No. of 
Shares

 % of 
Shares

1 - 1,000  4,916  1,427,582 2.70  5,124  1,547,302  2.93 

1,001 - 10,000  977  2,790,306 5.29  1,115  3,239,559  6.13 

10,001 - 100,000  112  3,123,322 5.91  118  3,211,123  6.08 

100,001 - 1,000,000  19  5,749,270 10.89  20  5,938,547  11.25 

Over 1,000,000 - Shares  6  39,709,520 75.21  6  38,863,469  73.61 

 6,030  52,800,000  100.00  6,383  52,800,000  100.00 

3) SHAREHOLDING SUMMARY AS AT 31” MARCH 
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4) CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

5)       MARKET INFORMATION ON ORDINARY SHARES OF THE COMPANY

  

 As at  As at

 31st March 2014 31st March 2013

Market price per share as at the last trading date Rs. 25.30 Rs.  35.00

Highest during the year Rs. 39.00 Rs.  42.00

Lowest during the year Rs. 24.50 Rs.  26.00

Earnings per share Rs.    0.28 Rs.    4.01

Net assets per share Rs. 48.27 Rs. 44.72

Dividend payout ratio 114.17% 4.98%

2014 2013

No. of
Holders

No. of
Shares

% No. of
Holders

No. of
Shares

%

Local Individuals  5,804  9,026,184  17.10 6126  9,067,668  17.17 

Local Institutions  178  43,220,034  81.85 198  43,185,474  81.79 

Foreign Individuals  48  553,782  1.05 59  546,858  1.04 

Foreign Institutions  -  -  - -  -  - 

 6,030  52,800,000  100.00  6,383  52,800,000  100.00 

SHARE 
HOLDERS’ 
INFORMATION 
�CONTD�
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KEY FINANCIAL 

HIGHLIGHTS

Key Highlighted Area 2013/2014 2012/2013
Variance 

(%)

Gross Revenue  707,012,168  871,054,950  (18.83)

Earnings before Interest & Tax- EBIT  96,837,553  223,465,006  (56.67)

Profit before Tax  28,298,497  254,291,615  (88.87)

Profit a�er Tax  14,798,126  211,854,526  (93.01)

Total Assets  4,929,542,438  2,805,926,995  75.68 

Total Liabilities  2,380,745,146  444,535,078  435.56 

Equity attributable to shareholders  2,548,797,292  2,361,391,917  7.94 

Earnings per share - Rs  0.28  4.01  (93.02)

Net Assets per share - Rs  48.27  44.72  7.94 

Interest Cover - No of times 1.20  29.58 

Gross Profit Ratio - %  72.69  73.39 

Net Profit Ratio - %  2.14  24.32 

Return on Equity - % 0.60  10.80 

Occupancy - % 62 64

Number of shares issued  52,800,000  52,800,000 

Current Ratio - No of times  0.52  1.07 
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FINANCIAL 

REVIEW

A) General 

Given the keen interest among global travelers on Sri Lanka, 
there is a very strong opportunity for investors of hotels, 
resorts, and leisure & entertainment complexes to profit from 
the growth of this sector.

B) Company 

1) Financial Performance

The company experienced mixed results as a result of 
the closure of the hotel for refurbishment, higher capital 
expenditure, and acquisition of Dickwella Resorts (Pvt) Ltd 
(Dickwella).  The property has seen a remarkable improvement 
as a result of the refurbishment significantly, improving the 
value proposition to the guests. Acquisition of Dickwella 
improves long term shareholder value as the acquired property 
is a unique property with medium to long term potential of 
high returns and long term capital appreciation.

1.1) Revenue.

During the year under review, the hotel was closed from  May 
2014 to mid-July for refurbishment and occupancy picked 
up gradually soon a�er the reopening. As a result,, there is 
a drop in the top line during the period under review when 
compared with the previous year.  Gross Revenue dropped  
from  Rs.871Mn in 2012/13 to Rs.707Mn in 2013/2014. 
Occupancy decreased by 2%. However in the final quarter 
starting January 2014, occupancy improved and a significant  
improvement in revenue was recored compared with the 
previous three quarters. The occupancy for the last three 
months was at an average of 87%,  resulting in revenue of Rs. 
342Mn in the last quarter.

1.2) Earnings Before Interest and Tax

Lower occupancy, an overall reduction in revenue and increased 
indirect costs resulted in a lower EBIT when compared with the 
previous financial year. The company recorded an EBIT of Rs 
96.8Mn which is 56% lower compared with  the previous year.

The personnel cost, marketing expenses and the depreciation 
expenses increased by Rs.24.7Mn, Rs.4.6Mn and Rs.11.2Mn 
respectively when compared with the previous financial year. 
Administration expenses reduced as a result of the lower  
management fees and  service charge  due to the decrease 
in revenue. However in total, indirect cost increased by                    
Rs.13.9Mn when compared to the previous year.

1.3) Finance Expenses

During the year, finance expenses increased significantly. This 
is mainly due to the interest costs, incurred on account of the 
short term working capital loans  and the Seylan Bank loan 
obtained during the year. However, the Company was able to 
settle all the working capital loans as at the reporting date, 
improving the Company’s gearing ratio.

2) Financial Position

During the year under review, the Company incurred Rs. 400Mn 
on refurbishment  enhancing the accommodation facilities and 
other key areas in the hotel.

A�er the refurbishment, the land and building was revalued at       
Rs. 2.4Bn by an independent professional valuer. The increase 
of Rs200Mn was credited to the Revaluation Reserve.

-
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During the financial year, the Company acquired 99.99% of 
Dickwella for a purchase consideration of Rs.1.5Bn. As a result 
the acquisition and the refurbishment, the company’s total 
asset base increased from Rs.2.8Bn to Rs.4.9Bn. The loan 
obtained from Seylan Bank PLC for Rs.1.5Bn funded part of the 
said increases in the asset base.

C) Group

As a result of the acquisition of Dickwella,  the Group’s 
financial performance reflects 5 months performances of the 
said company. During the post-acquisition period, Dickwella 
reported a profit of Rs.35Mn.

In summary, the company concluded an average year of 
financial performance, considering the structural changes 
as a result of the refurbishment and acquisition. However, 
these strategic investments have improves the long term 
value proposition of the hotel property and the company and 
strategies are in place to improve financial performance in line 
with higher standards of the facilities on offer coupled with the 
estimated increase in tourist arrivals. 

FINANCIAL 

REVIEW
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TEN YEAR 

SUMMARY

DESCRIPTION
2004/
2005 

2005/
2006 

2006/
2007 

2007/
2008

2008/
2009

2009/
2010

2010/
2011

2011/
2012 *

2012/
2013 *

2013/
2014 *

In Rs 
“000”

In Rs 
“000”

In Rs 
“000”

In Rs 
“000”

In Rs 
“000”

In Rs 
“000”

In Rs 
“000”

In Rs 
“000”

In Rs 
“000”

In Rs 
“000”

TRADING RESULTS

Turnover (Gross) 222,785 349,796 423,843 479,832 311,321 498,002 648,032 757,908 876,722 707,012 

Gross Profit 133,002 216,849 255,567 280,794 174,073 299,818 417,456 546,463 639,244 518,198 

Marketing Expenses  (13,516)  (14,250)  (9,132)  (8,986)  (8,204)  (9,783)  (10,423)  (9,878)  (15,231)  (19,881)

Earnings Before Interest 
& Tax

 (32,443) 4,414 44,605 62,338  (37,325) 47,558 124,297 173,519 263,189 167,168 

Finance Expenses  (7,906)  (22,629)  (22,080)  (21,903)  (8,988)  (20,852)  (11,339)  (3,028)  (8,897)  (138,870)

Profit /(Loss) before Tax  (40,349)  (18,215) 22,525 40,435  (46,313) 26,706 112,958 170,491 254,292 28,298 

Profit /(Loss) a�er Tax (40,349)  (18,215) 17,686 42,769  (26,850) 3,019 101,461 146,174 211,855 14,798 

DESCRIPTION

2004/
2005 

2005/
2006 

2006/
2007 

2007/
2008

2008/
2009

2009/
2010

2010/
2011

2011/
2012 *

2012/
2013 *

2013/
2014 *

In Rs 
“000”

In Rs 
“000”

In Rs 
“000”

In Rs 
“000”

In Rs 
“000”

In Rs 
“000”

In Rs 
“000”

In Rs 
“000”

In Rs 
“000”

In Rs 
“000”

ASSETS & LIABILITIES

Non Current Assets 1,034,251 1,061,207 1,023,577 991,117 971,670 1,430,030 1,486,936 1,628,825 2,534,981 4,575,894 

Current Assets 126,221 166,662 204,748 246,347 145,594 216,146 264,375 302,844 270,946 353,649 

Non Current Liabilities  (62,992)  (99,074)  (120,313)  (100,897)  (86,800)  (221,319)  (159,521)  (134,066)  (192,427)  (1,704,613)

Current Liabilities  (71,620)  (121,149)  (125,897)  (145,017)  (79,097)  (159,047)  (164,207)  (235,755)  (252,108)  (676,132)

CAPITAL & RESERVES

Stated Capital 528,000 528,000 528,000 528,000 528,000 528,000 528,000 528,000 528,000 528,000 

Reserves 397,861 379,647 354,114 396,884 356,700 737,810 899,583 1,033,847 1,833,392 2,020,797 

DESCRIPTION
2004/
2005 

2005/
2006 

2006/
2007 

2007/
2008

2008/
2009

2009/
2010

2010/
2011

2011/
2012 *

2012/
2013 *

2013/
2014 *

RATIOS & STATISTICS

Occupany (%) 51% 44% 52% 53% 37% 64% 64% 64% 64% 62%

Market Share (Rs.) 16.50 15.75 11.50 14.00 9.75 33.75 51.20 30.80 35.00 25.30 

DESCRIPTION
2004/
2005 

2005/
2006 

2006/
2007 

2007/
2008

2008/
2009

2009/
2010

2010/
2011

2011/
2012 *

2012/
2013 *

2013/
2014 *

Gearing (%) 20.30 24.89 22.21 15.99 15.47 7.62 3.57 1.09 0.21 73.76 

Current Ratio 1.55 1.33 1.63 1.70 1.84 1.36 1.61 1.28 1.07 0.52 

Net Assets Per Share (Rs.) 19.43 18.26 16.71 17.52 16.76 23.97 27.04 29.58 44.72 48.24 

Earnings/(Loss) Per Share 
(Rs.)

 (0.76) 0.13 0.33 0.81  (0.76) 0.06 1.92 2.77 4.01 0.28 

*    These financial Information are based on the Sri Lanka Financial Reporting Standards- (SLFRS) / LKAS

     Other financial information are based on the previous Accounting Standards- (SLAS)
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DIRECTORS’ 

RESPONSIBILITY 

FOR FINANCIAL 

REPORTING

The Directors confirm that the Company’s Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2014 are prepared and presented 
in conformity with the requirements of the Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards, the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange, and 
the Companies Act No.07 of 2007. They believe that the Financial 
Statements present a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of 
the Company as at the end of the financial year.

The Directors also accept responsibility for the integrity and 
accuracy of the Financial Statements presented and confirm that 
appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied 
consistently and reasonable and prudent judgment has been 
exercised so as to accurately report transaction.

The Directors have taken reasonable steps to safeguard the assets 
of the Company, to prevent, deter and detect fraud, and to ensure 
the integrity, accuracy and safeguarding of operational and financial 
records.

The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge, all 
statutory payments due in respect of the Company and its 
subsidiaries as at the Balance Sheet date have been paid for, or 
where relevant, provided for.

The Directors believe that the company is in a position to continue 
its operations in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the financial 
statements are prepared on the basis that company is a going 
concern.

The External Auditors, Messer’s KPMG, Chartered Accountants were 
provided with the opportunity to make appropriate inspections of 
financial records, minutes and other documents to enable them 
to form an opinion of the Financial Statements. The Report of the 
Auditors is set out on page 19.

Kapila Jayawardena
Chairman 
Date: 27th May 2014

The Financial Statements are prepared in compliance with the Sri 
Lanka Accounting Standards issued by The Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Sri Lanka and the requirements of the Companies 
Act No.07 of 2007 and any other applicable statues to the extent 
applicable to the Company. There are no departures from the 
prescribed accounting standards in their adoption. The accounting 
policies used in the preparation of the Financial Statements are 
appropriate and are consistently applied.

The Board of Directors and the management of your Company 
accept responsibility for the integrity and objectivity of these 
financial statements. The estimates and judgments relating to 
the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable 
basis, in order that the financial statements reflect in a true and fair 
manner, the form and substance of transactions reasonably present 
the Company’s state of affairs. To ensure this, the Company has 
taken proper and sufficient care in installing a system of internal 
controls and accounting records, for safeguarding assets and for 
preventing and detecting frauds as well as other irregularities, 
which is reviewed, evaluated and updated on an ongoing basis. 
However, there are inherent limitations that should be recognized 
in weighing the assurances provided by any system of internal 
controls and accounting.

The financial statements were audited by Messer’s  KPMG, Chartered 
Accountants, the Company’s External Auditors. The audit committee 
of your company meets periodically with the external auditors to 
review the manner in which these auditors are performing their 
responsibilities and to discuss auditing and financial reporting 
issues. To ensure complete independence, the external auditors 
have full and free access to the members of the Audit Committee 
to discuss any matter of substance.

It is also declared and confirmed that the Company has complied 
with and ensured compliance by the Auditor with the guidelines 
for the audit of listed companies where mandatory compliance is 
required. It is further confirmed that all the other guidelines have 
been complied with.

Kapila Jayawardena
Chairman

Sunjeevani Kotakadeniya
Chief Financial Officer - LOLC Group
Date: 27th May 2014

S j i K k d i

CHAIRMAN’S AND 
CHIEF FINANCIAL 
OFFICER’S 
RESPONSIBILITY 
STATEMENT
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Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Eden 
Hotel Lanka PLC, (“the Company”) and the consolidated financial 
statements of the company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31st 
March, 2014, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in 
equity and cash flow for the year then ended, and notes, comprising 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information set out on pages 20 to 59 of the Annual Report.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation 
of these financial statements in accordance with Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, 
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; 
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making 
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Scope of Audit and Basis of Opinion
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting policies used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation.

We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of 
our audit. We therefore believe that our audit provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion so far as appears from our examination, the Company 
maintained proper accounting records for the year ended 31st 
March, 2014, and the financial statements give a true and fair view 
of the financial position of the Company as at 31st March, 2014, 
and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true 
and fair view of the financial position of the Company and its 
subsidiaries dealt with thereby as at 31st March, 2014, and of its 
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
These financial statements also comply with the requirements of 
Section 153(2) to 153(7) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Colombo
27th May 2014

KPMG  
(Chartered Accountants) Tel  :  +94 - 11 542 6426
32A, Sir Mohamed Macan Markar Mawatha, Fax  :  +94 - 11 244 5872
P. O. Box 186,   +94 - 11 244 6058
Colombo 00300,   +94 - 11 254 1249
Sri Lanka.   +94 - 11 230 7345
 Internet  :  www.lk.kpmg.com

KPMG, a Sri Lankan Partnership

("KPMG International"), a Swiss entity.

M.R. Mihular FCA  P.Y.S. Perera FCA  C.P. Jayatilake FCA 
T.J.S. Rajakarier FCA W.W.J.C. Perera FCA Ms. S. Joseph FCA 
Ms. S.M.B. Jayasekara ACA W.K.D.C. Abeyrathne ACA S.T.D.L. Perera FCA 
G.A.U. Karunaratne ACA R.M.D.B. Rajapakse ACA Ms. B.K.D.T.N. Rodrigo ACA

Principals - S.R.I. Perera ACMA, LLB, Attorney-at-Law, H.S. Goonewardene ACA 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'  REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EDEN HOTEL LANKA PLC
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STATEMENT OF

COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME

For the Year Ended 31 March Note

Group Company

2014
Rs.

2014
Rs.

2013
Rs.

Revenue 4  742,971,348  614,452,241  754,992,220 

Less: Cost of sales (125,272,854)  (96,254,146) (115,748,538)

Gross Profit  617,698,494  518,198,095  639,243,682 

Other income 5  18,834,766 17,781,530  9,839,520 

Profit Before Operating Expenses  636,533,260  535,979,625  649,083,202 

Operating Expenses

Personnel costs 6 (125,983,216)  (108,089,651)  (83,297,740)

Depreciation and amortization 7  (68,812,813)  (60,156,475)  (48,903,981)

Other administrative expenses (280,741,287)  (251,168,773) (277,922,750)

Marketing expenses  (25,666,205)  (19,880,589)  (15,230,898)

Share of profit/(loss) of equity accounted investees
(net of income tax) 

8  153,416  153,416  (262,826)

Results From Operating Activities 7  135,483,155  96,837,553  223,465,007 

Net finance income/(costs) 9 (71,681,625)  (68,539,056)  30,826,608 

Profit Before Income Tax Expense  63,801,530  28,298,497  254,291,615 

Income tax expense 10  (4,931,871)  (13,500,370)  (42,437,089)

Profit For The Year  58,869,659  14,798,127  211,854,526 

Other Comprehensive Income Statement

Net change in fair values of available for sale  financial assets  (10,574)  (10,574)  (170,414)

Defined benefit plan actuarial gains /(losses) 28  (3,897,706)  (3,022,413)  216,958 

Surplus on revaluation of land and building  200,631,028  200,631,028  660,366,127 

Tax on other comprehensive income 10.4  (7,989,758)  (8,094,793)  (62,162,175)

Total Other Comprehensive Income For The Year  188,732,990  189,503,248  598,250,494 

Total Comprehensive Income For The Year  247,602,649  204,301,375  810,105,022 

Earnings per share 11  1.11  0.28  4.01 

Dividend per share 12  0.32  0.32  0.20 

The Notes annexed form an integral part of these Financial Statements.  
Figures in brackets indicate deductions.            
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STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL 

POSITION

As at 31 March Note

Group Company

2014

Rs.

2014

Rs.

2013

Rs.

Assets

Non Current Assets 

Property, plant and equipment 13 4,388,486,683  2,672,000,195 2,129,984,969 

Goodwill on acquisition 14  67,685,314  -    -   

Intangible assets 15  431,765  431,765  626,803 

Investment in subsidiary 16  -    1,507,500,000  -   

Investment in equity accounted investees 17  2,476,666  2,476,666  2,323,250 

Loans due from related companies 18  285,705,378  392,823,771  392,823,771 

Financial assets 19  661,443  661,443  9,222,324 

Total Non Current Assets 4,745,447,249  4,575,893,840 2,534,981,117 

Current Assets

Inventories 20  21,035,033  17,638,953  12,571,988 

Trade and other receivable 21  324,590,113  263,535,777  193,080,773 

Current tax receivable 22  6,758,296  -    -   

Cash and cash equivalents 23  109,642,294  72,473,868  65,293,117 

Total Current Assets  462,025,736  353,648,598  270,945,878 

Total Assets 5,207,472,985  4,929,542,438 2,805,926,995 

Equity and Liabilities

Stated capital 24  528,000,000  528,000,000  528,000,000 

Reserves 25 1,616,747,446  1,616,747,446 1,424,584,474 

Retained earnings 26  447,351,120  404,049,846  408,807,443 

Total Equity 2,592,098,566 2,548,797,292 2,361,391,917 

Liabilities

Non Current Liabilities 

Interest bearing borrowings 27 1,501,027,381  1,500,000,000  -   

Employee benefits 28  15,776,158  11,775,350  7,717,749 

Deferred tax liabilities 29  237,351,466  192,837,536  184,709,222 

Total Non Current Liabilities 1,754,155,005  1,704,612,886  192,426,971 

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payable 30  293,190,734  270,290,118  206,749,249 

Interest bearing borrowings 27  540,963,690  380,000,000  5,000,000 

Current tax payables 31  18,281,234  17,058,386  26,621,053 

Bank overdra� 23  8,783,756  8,783,756  13,737,805 

Total Current Liabilities  861,219,414  676,132,260  252,108,107 

Total Equity and Liabilities 5,207,472,985  4,929,542,438 2,805,926,995 

The Notes annexed form an integral part of these Financial Statements.  Figures in brackets indicate deductions.    
These Financial Statements have been prepared and presented in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007. 
 
    

      
Mrs. Sunjeevani Kotakadeniya
Chief Financial Officer - LOLC Group
      
 

    

      

Mr. W.D.K. Jayawardena        Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe
Chairman          Director 
27th May 2014        

Colombo.          

  

  

  

M W D K J

Approved and signed on behalf of the Board,

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements.
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STATEMENT OF

CHANGES 

IN EQUITY

Equity attributable to the shareholders of the Company 

Stated 
Capital

Revaluation 
Reserve

Fair Value 
Reserve 
on AFS

Retained 
Earnings

Total 

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.  Rs. 

Group

Effect on consolidation  528,000,000  1,424,596,557  (12,083)  408,807,443  2,361,391,917 

Total comprehensive income for the period -

Profit for the year  58,869,659  58,869,659 

Other comprehensive income

Net change in fair value of available-for-sale financial 
assets (net of tax)

 (10,574)  (10,574)

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment  200,631,028  200,631,028 

Deferred tax on revaluation  (8,457,483)  (8,457,483)

Defined benefit plan actuarial gains (losses) (net of tax)  (3,429,982)  (3,429,982)

Total comprehensive income for the year  -    192,173,545  (10,574)  55,439,677  247,602,648 

Transactions with owners directly recorded in the equity

Contribution by and distribution to owners

Dividends  (16,896,000)  (16,896,000)

Balance as at 31 March 2014 528,000,000 1,616,770,102  (22,657) 447,351,120 2,592,098,566 

Company

Balance as at 1 April 2012  528,000,000  826,392,605  158,331  207,295,959  1,561,846,895 

Total comprehensive income for the period

Profit for the year  211,854,526  211,854,526 

Other comprehensive income

Net change in fair value of available-for-sale financial 

assets (net of tax)

 (170,414)  (170,414)

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment  660,366,127  660,366,127 

Deferred tax on revaluation  (62,162,175)  (62,162,175)

Defined benefit plan actuarial gains (losses) (net of tax)  216,958  216,958 

Total comprehensive income for the year  -    598,203,952  (170,414)  212,071,484  810,105,022 

Contributions by and distributions to owners

Dividends - - -  (10,560,000)  (10,560,000)

Balance as at 31 March 2013 528,000,000 1,424,596,557  (12,083) 408,807,443 2,361,391,917 
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Equity attributable to the shareholders  of the Company 

Stated 
Capital

Revaluation 
Reserve

Fair Value 
Reserve 
on AFS

Retained 
Earnings

Total 

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.  Rs. 

Total comprehensive income for the period

Profit for the year  14,798,126  14,798,126 

Other comprehensive income

Net change in fair value of available-for-sale financial 
assets (net of tax)

 (10,574)  (10,574)

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment  200,631,028  200,631,028 

Deferred tax on revaluation  (8,457,483)  (8,457,483)

Defined benefit plan actuarial gains (losses) (net of tax)  (2,659,723)  (2,659,723)

Total comprehensive income for the year  -    192,173,545  (10,574)  12,138,403  204,301,374 

Transactions with Owners directly recorded in the Equity

Contribution by and distribution to owners

Dividends  (16,896,000)  (16,896,000)

Balance as at 31 March 2014 528,000,000 1,616,770,102  (22,657) 404,049,846 2,548,797,292 

STATEMENT OF
CHANGES 
IN EQUITY
 �CONTD�
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STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended 31 March Note

Group Company

2014
Rs.

2014
Rs.

2013
Rs.

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before income tax expense  63,801,529  28,298,497  254,291,614 

Adjustment for:

(Gain) / loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  5  (5,433,915)  (5,853,234)  (10,095,000)

Depreciation and amortization  7    68,812,813  60,156,474  48,903,981 

Provision for retirement benefit obligations  28    3,165,950  2,397,790  1,656,766 

Dividend income 5  (30,510)  (30,510)  (20,340)

Finance costs  9  124,069,878  138,869,638  8,897,339 

Interest income 9  (52,388,253)  (70,330,582)  (39,723,947)

Share of profit / (loss) of equity accounted investee  (153,416)  (153,416)  262,826 

Operating profit before working capital changes  201,844,077  153,354,656  264,173,239 

WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (105,772,573)  (70,455,004)  64,894,862 

(Increase)/decrease in inventories  (4,481,230)  (5,066,965)  203,171 

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables  (83,776,959)  63,540,869  40,574,233 

Cash generated from operations  7,813,315  141,373,556  369,845,505 

Finance cost paid (106,127,549)  (138,869,638)  (8,897,399)

Tax paid  (23,120,213)  (23,029,516)  (37,059,180)

Retirement benefit obligations paid 28  (1,480,727)  (1,362,602)  (777,267)

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities (122,915,174)  (21,888,200)  323,111,720 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net cash from acquisition of subsidiary 16 (1,484,762,709)  -    -   

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 13 (426,950,736)  (401,345,634)  (47,870,071)

Net investment in term deposits  8,550,306  8,550,306  145,566,241 

Acquisition of subsidiaries  -   (1,507,500,000)  -   

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 5  5,433,914  5,853,235  10,095,000 

Interest received 9  52,388,253  70,330,582  39,723,947 

Dividends 5  30,510  30,510  20,340 

Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities (1,845,310,462) (1,824,081,000)  147,535,457 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long-term interest bearing loans and borrowings 2,040,000,000  1,880,000,000  -   

Repayments of long-term interest bearing loans and borrowings  (5,575,139)  (5,000,000)  (12,000,000)

Proceeds granted to related companies  -    -   (392,823,771)

Dividends paid  (16,896,000)  (16,896,000)  (10,560,000)

Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities 2,017,528,862  1,858,104,000 (415,383,771)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  49,303,225  12,134,800  55,263,405 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  51,555,312  51,555,312  (3,708,093)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  100,858,538  63,690,112  51,555,312 

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash in hand and favorable bank balances  23.1  109,642,294  72,473,868  65,293,117 

Unfavorable bank balances used for cash management purposes  23.2  (8,783,756)  (8,783,756)  (13,737,805)

 100,858,538  63,690,112  51,555,312 
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NOTES TO THE 

FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS

1. REPORTING ENTITY

1.1 General 

Eden Hotel Lanka PLC (‘the Company’) is a public quoted 

company incorporated on 13th January 1992 and domiciled 

in Sri Lanka. The address of the Company’s registered 

office is No. 110/1, Sri Jayewardenepura Mawatha, 

Rajagiriya and the principal place of business is situated at 

Kaluwamodara, Aluthgama. The Company has entered into 

an agreement with the Board of Investment of Sri Lanka in 

terms of Section 17 of the Board of Investment Law No 04 

of 1978 to set up, conduct and operated the business of a 

five star hotel. The company commenced its operations on 

02nd April 1995.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as 

at and for the year ended 31st March 2014 comprise of the 

Company and its Subsidiary (together referred to as the 

“Group” and individually as “Company”).

Ordinary shares of the company are listed on the main 

board of the Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE).

1.2 Principle activities and nature of operation  

The principal activity of the company was hoterliering and 

there were no significant changes in the nature of the 

operation of the company during the financial year under 

review. 

1.3 Parent entity and ultimate parent entity

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Company’s 

immediate parent is Palm Garden Hotels PLC and the 

ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is Lanka 

ORIX Leasing Company PLC which is incorporated in Sri 

Lanka.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Group and the Company 

prepared in accordance with the Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standards (SLFRSs/LKASs) issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (ICASL) and in 

compliance with the requirements of the  Companies Act 

No. 07 of 2007. 

The Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 

2014 were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors 

on 27th May 2014.

2.2 Basis of measurement

The financial statements of the Group and the Company 
have been prepared on the historical cost basis with no 
adjustments being made for inflationary factors affecting 
the financial statements, except for the following material 
items in the statement of financial position,

value.

at the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

amounts.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency is the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Group/Company 
operates.

The financial statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupee 
(Rs.), which is the functional currency and the Group’s 
presentation currency. All financial information presented 
in Rupee has been rounded to the nearest Rupee unless 
stated otherwise.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgment

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity 
with SLFRSs/LKASs requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
application of accounting policies and the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are based on 
historical experience and various other factors that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the 
results which form the basis of making the judgments 
about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are 
not readily apparent from other sources.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on 
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised 
and in any future periods affected.

Information about significant areas of estimation, 
uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting 
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognized in the financial statements are included in the 

following notes to these financial statements.

Critical accounting estimate/judgment

Disclosure 
reference

Note Page

Revaluation of lands and buildings 13 41

Retirement benefit obligation 28 50

Deferred tax assets and liabilities 29 51

Useful lives of property, plant and 
equipment

3.9.1 30

Useful lives of intangible assets 3.8.5 29
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2.5 Comparative information

Previous period figures and notes have been restated and 
reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the current 
year’s presentation.

2.6 Materiality and aggregation

As per LKAS – 01 “Presentation of Financial Statements”, 
each material class of similar items is presented separately 
in the Financial Statements. Items of dissimilar nature 
or function are presented separately unless they are 
immaterial.

2.7 Offsetting

Assets and liabilities, and income and expenses, are not 
offset unless required or permitted by SLFRSs/LKASs.

2.8 Going concern

The Board of Directors have made an assessment of the 
company’s ability to continue as going concern and being 
satisfied that the company has adequate resources to 
continue its operations in the foreseeable future and 
management is not aware of any material uncertainties 
that may cast significant doubt upon the company ability 
to continue as a going concern. Therefore going-concern 
basis has been adopted in preparing these Financial 
Statements.

2.9 Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of these Financial Statements in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards and as 
per the provisions of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007. 
This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and 
maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of Financial Statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; 
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; 
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in 
the circumstances.

These Financial Statements include the following 
components;

information on the financial position of the Group and 
the Company as at the year end.

information on the financial performance of the Group 
and the Company for the year under review.

the information of the other comprehensive income of 
the Group and the Company.

in shareholders’ funds during the year under review of 
the Group and the Company.

the users, on the ability of the Group and the Company 
to generate cash and cash equivalents and the needs of 
entities to utilize those cash flows, and.

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied 
consistently to all periods presented in the Financial 
Statements of the Group and the Company unless 
otherwise indicated.

These accounting policies have been applied consistently 
by entities within the Group. 

3.1 Basis of consolidation

3.1.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control 
exists when the Company has the power, directly or 
indirectly, to govern the financial and operational policies 
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In 
assessing control, potential voting rights that presently are 
exercisable or convertible are taken into account.

The Financial Statements of subsidiaries are included in 
the consolidated Financial Statements from the date that 
control commences until the date that control ceases. 
Acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the 
acquisition method of accounting.

The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed 
when necessary to align them with the policies adopted 
by the Group. If a member of the group uses accounting 
policies other than those adopted in the consolidated 
Financial Statements for similar transactions and events in 
similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made 
to its Financial Statements in preparing the consolidated 
Financial Statements.

3.1.2 Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling Interests is the equity in a subsidiary 
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the parent are 
presented in the Statement of Financial Position within 
Equity, separately from the Equity Attributable to Equity 
Holders of the Parent (Company). 

3.1.3 Acquisition of non-controlling interests

Subsequent to the acquisition of control, any further 
acquisition of net assets from non-controlling interests is 
accounted for as transactions with owners in their capacity 
as owners. Therefore no goodwill is recognized as a result 
of such transactions.

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
�CONTD�
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Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests is adjusted and the fair value of the 
consideration paid or received shall be recognized directly 
in equity and attributed to the owners of the parent.

3.1.4 Loss of control

The parent can lose control of a subsidiary with or without 
a change in absolute or relative ownership levels. Upon 
the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets and 
liabilities of the subsidiary, any minority interests and the 
other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any 
surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognized 
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

If the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, 
then such interest is measured at fair value at the date 
that control is lost. Subsequently it is accounted for as 
an equity-accounted investee or as other financial asset 
depending on the level of influence retained.

3.1.5 Associates - equity accounted investees

Associates are those entities in which the Group has 
significant influence, but not control, over the financial 
and operating activities. Significant influence is presumed 
to exist when the Group holds between twenty and fi�y 
percent of the voting power of another entity.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method 
(equity accounted investees) and are initially recognized 
at cost. The Group’s investment in associate includes 
goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated 
impairment losses. 

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the Group’s 
share of the income and expenses and equity movements 
of equity accounted investees, a�er adjustments to align 
the accounting policies with those of the Group, from the 
date that significant influence commences until the date 
that significant influence ceases. 

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in 
an equity accounted investee, the carrying amount of that 
interest (including any long-term investments) is reduced 
to zero and the recognition of further losses is discontinued 
except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or 
has made payments on behalf of the investee. 

3.1.6 Balances and Transactions Eliminated on  

 Consolidation

Intra group balances and transactions, including income, 
expenses and dividends, are eliminated in full. Profits and 
losses resulting from intra group transactions that are 
recognized in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, 
are eliminated in full. 

Unrealized gains arising from transactions with equity-
accounted investees are eliminated against the investment 
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee.

3.1.7 Business Combinations

All business combinations have been accounted for by 
applying the acquisition method in accordance with the 
SLFRS 3 - Business Combinations. Applying this method 
involves the entity that obtains control over the other 
entity to recognize the fair value of assets acquired and 
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed, including 
those not previously recognized.

3.1.8 Cost of Acquisition

The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of 
the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities 
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange. This excludes 
any transaction costs incurred.

3.1.9 Goodwill on Acquisition

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of any acquisition 
of a subsidiary or an associate over the Group’s interest in 
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and 
contingent liabilities acquired.

The Group will test the goodwill for impairment annually 
and assess for any indication of impairment to ensure 
that its carrying amount does not exceed the recoverable 
amount. If an impairment loss is identified, it is recognised 
immediately to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired 
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, 
allocated to groups of cash-generating units that are 
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying 
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to 
the other assets pro-rata to the carrying amount of each 
asset in the unit. Where goodwill forms part of a cash-
generating unit and part of the operation within that unit 
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation 
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the 
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal 
of the operation.

Carrying amount of the goodwill arising on acquisition 
of subsidiaries and joint ventures is presented as an 
intangible and the goodwill on an acquisition of an equity 
accounted investment is included in the carrying value of 
the investment.

3.1.10  Gain on Bargain Purchase (Negative Goodwill)

If the Group’s interest, in the net fair value of the identifiable 
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost 
of the acquisition of the entity, the Group will reassess the 
measurement of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and 
liabilities and the measurement of the cost and recognise 
the difference immediately in the Consolidated Statement 
of Comprehensive Income.

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
�CONTD�
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3.1.11 Reporting date

The financial statements of parent company and its 
subsidiary have a common financial year  which ends on 
31st March.

3.2 Foreign currency

3.2.1 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the 
functional currency (Sri Lankan Rupees - LKR) of the Group 
at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the 
functional currency at the exchange rates at that date of 
translation. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary 
items are the difference between amortized cost in the 
functional currency at the beginning of the year, adjusted 
for effective interest and payments during the year, and 
the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the 
exchange rate at the end of the year.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated 
to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date 
that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items in 
a foreign currency that are measured in terms of historical 
cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of 
the transaction.

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are 
recognized in Statement of  Comprehensive Income.

3.3 Financial Instruments

3.3.1 Financial assets – non –derivative financial assets

Non – derivative Financial assets are within the scope of 
LKAS 39 are classified appropriately as fair value through 
Profit or Loss (FVTPL), loans and receivables (L&R), held 
to maturity (HTM), available for sale (AFS) at its initial 
recognition. 

All the financial assets are recognized at fair value at its 
initial recognition.  

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the 
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, 
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash 
flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred 
financial assets that is created or retained by the Group is 
recognized as a separate asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net 
amount presented in the statement of financial position 
when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to offset 
the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or 
to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.3.1.1 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified at fair value through profit or 
loss if it is classified as held for trading or is designated 
as such upon initial recognition. Financial assets are 
designated at fair value through profit or loss if the Group 
manages such investments and make purchases and sale 
decisions based on their fair value in accordance with 
the Group’s documented risk management or investment 
strategy. Upon initial recognition attributable transaction 
costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at 
fair value, and changes therein, which takes into account 
any dividend income, are recognized in statement of 
comprehensive income.

The Group has not classified any financial assets as fair 
value through profit or loss as of the reporting date and 
during the reporting period.

 3.3.1.2 Held –to- maturity financial assets

If the  Group has  the positive intent and ability  to hold  
debt  securities to mature , then  such  financial  assets  are 
classified as held-to –maturity. Held-to-maturity financial 
assets are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly 
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition held-to-maturity financial assets are measured 
at amortized cost using the effective interest method, 
less any impairment losses. Any sale or reclassification  
of a more than  insignificant amount of held-to-maturity 
investment not closed to their  maturity  would result  in 
the reclassification of all held-to maturity investments as 
available for sale, and prevent the Group from classifying 
investments securities  as held-to-maturity for the current 
and the following  two financial years.  
The Group has not classified any financial assets as held 
to maturity of the reporting date and during the reporting 
period.

3.3.1.3 Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments that are not quoted in active 
market. Such assets are recognized initially at fair value 
plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent 
to initial recognition loans and receivables are measured 
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method 
(EIR) less any impairment losses.

3.3.1.4 Available for sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets are non-derivative 
financial assets that are designated as available for sale 
and that are not classified in any of the previous categories. 
The Group’s investments in equity securities and certain 
debt securities are classified as available for sale financial 
assets.

Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at 
fair value and changes therein, other than impairment 
losses are recognized in other comprehensive income and 
presented within equity in the fair value reserve. When an 
investment is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss 
in other comprehensive income is transferred to income 
statement.

NOTES TO THE 
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3.3.2 Non –derivative financial liabilities

The Group initially recognizes debt securities issued and 
subordinated liabilities on the date that they are originated.  
All other financial liabilities are recognized initially on the 
trade date at which the Group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its 
contractual obligations are discharged or canceled or 
expire.

The Group classifies its non-derivative financial liabilities 
into following categories:

a)   Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss .
 b)   Other financial liabilities.
 
3.3.2.1 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair 
value through profit loss.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized 
in the statement of the comprehensive income.
 
The Group has not designated any financial liabilities upon 
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

3.3.2.2  Other financial liabilities

All financial liabilities other than those at fair value through 
profit and loss are classified as other financial liabilities.

All other financial liabilities are recognized initially at 
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition these financial liabilities 
are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
rate method. The financial liabilities include trade and 
other payables, bank overdra�s, loans and borrowings. 

3.4 Trade  and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at the amounts they 
are estimated to realize, net of provisions for impairment. 
An allowance for impairment losses is made where as 
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able 
to recover all amounts due according to the original terms 
of receivables. Impaired receivables are written-off when 
identified.

3.5 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and 
cash at banks and other highly liquid financial assets 
which are held for the purpose of meeting short-term 
cash commitments with original maturities of less than 
three months which are subject to insignificant risk of 
changes in their fair value.

Bank overdra�s that are repayable on demand and form 
an integral part of the Group cash management are 
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for 
the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows.

3.6 Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net 
realizable value. 

The cost of inventories is based on the weighted average 
principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring 
the inventories, production or conversion costs and other 
costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location 
and condition.

The net realizable value is the estimated selling price in 
the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs 
of completion of selling expenses.

The cost incurred in bringing the inventories to its present 
condition and location is accounted using the following 
cost formula.

Spares and Consumables       Weighted average cost basis
Food and Beverages               Weighted average cost basis

3.7 Other receivables

Other receivable balances are stated at estimated amounts 
receivable a�er providing for doubtful receivables.

3.8 Intangible assets

3.8.1 Basis of recognition

An Intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that 
future economic benefits that are attributable to the 
assets will flow to the entity and the cost of the assets 
can be measured reliably.

3.8.2 Basis of measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured as 
initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition 
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. 
The useful life of intangible assets is assessed to be either 
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite useful life 
are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed 
for impairment whenever there is an indication that 
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization 
period and the method for an intangible asset with a finite 
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. 
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested 
for impairment annually either individually or at the cash 
generating unit level.

3.8.3 Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized 
only when it increases the future economic benefits 
embodied these assets. All other expenditure is expensed 
when incurred.
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3.8.4 De-recognition

Intangible assets are de-recognized on disposal or when 
no future economic benefits are expected from its use. 
The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of intangible 
assets are measured as difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset.

3.8.5 Amortization

Amortization is recognized in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of intangible assets, other than 
goodwill, from the date that they are available for use.
The estimated useful life of each intangible asset is as 
follows;

Computer So�ware               8 years

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values 
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if 
appropriate.

3.9 Property, plant and equipment 

3.9.1 Basis of recognition 

Property, plant and equipment are recognized if it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the asset will flow to the company and cost of the asset 
can be reliably measured.

 
3.9.2 Basis of measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured 
at cost/revaluation less accumulated depreciation/
impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises 
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of 
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended 
use.  The cost of self-constructed assets includes the 
cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly 
attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition 
for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and 
removing the items and restoring the site on which they 
are located, and capitalized borrowing costs. 

Purchased so�ware that is integral to the functionality 
of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that 
equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment 
have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items of property, plant and equipment.

3.9.3 Cost model

The Group applies the cost model to all property, plant 
and equipment except freehold land and buildings; which 
records at cost of purchase together with any incidental 
expenses thereon less any accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses.

3.9.4 Revaluation model

The Group revalues its land and buildings which are 
measured at its fair value at the date of revaluation less any 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses. Revaluations are made with sufficient 
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not 
differ materially from that which would be determined 
using fair value at the reporting date.

On revaluation of lands and buildings, any increase in the 
revaluation amount is credited to the revaluation reserve in 
shareholder’s equity unless it off sets a previous decrease 
in value of the same asset that was recognized in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income. A decrease in value 
is recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
where it exceeds the increase previously recognized in the 
revaluation reserve. Upon disposal, any related revaluation 
reserve is transferred from the revaluation reserve to 
retained earnings and is not taken into account in arriving 
at the gain or loss on disposal.

3.9.5 Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant 
and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of 
the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its 
cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the 
replaced part is de-recognized. The costs of the day-to-day 
servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized 
in Statement of Comprehensive Income as incurred.

3.9.6 Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its 
residual value. Significant components of individual assets 
are assessed and if a component has a useful life that is 
different from the remainder of that asset, that component 
is depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognized in Statement of Comprehensive 
Income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful 
life of each component of an item of property, plant 
and equipment. Leased assets are depreciated over the 
shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless it is 
reasonably certain that the company will obtain ownership 
by the end of the lease term. Lands are not depreciated.

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for 
use and ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset 
is classified as held for sale and the date that the asset is 
de-recognized.

Depreciation methods, useful life values are assessed 
at the reporting date. The estimated useful lives for the 
current year are as follows:

Building                                        50 years
Plant and Machinery 8 years
Motor Vehicles 4-5Years
Furniture and Fittings 5-10 Years
Computer So�ware 8 Years
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Swimming pool 10years
Cutlery, Crockery & Glassware 5 years
Linen 3 years
Sewage system 20 years

3.9.7 De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized 
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant 
and equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds 
from disposal with the carrying amount of the property, 
plant and equipment, and is recognized net within other 
income/other expenses in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts 
included in the revaluation surplus reserve are transferred 
to retained earnings.

3.9.8 Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost. These are 
expenses of a capital nature directly incurred in the 
construction of properties.

3.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s Non-Financial 
Assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists, then the assets’ recoverable amount is 
estimated. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying 
amount of an asset or its related Cash-Generating Unit 
(CGU) exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

The Group’s corporate assets do not generate separate 
cash inflows and are utilized by more than one CGU. 
Corporate assets are allocated to CGUs on a reasonable 
and consistent basis and tested for impairment as part 
of the testing of the CGU to which the corporate asset is 
allocated.

Impairment losses are recognized in Profit or Loss. 
Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are 
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any 
goodwill allocated to the CGU (group of CGUs), and then to 
reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the CGU 
(group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed 
at each reporting date for any indications that the loss 
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is 
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used 
to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss 
is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of depreciation, if no 
impairment loss had been recognized.

3.11 Tax expense

Tax expense comprises of current, deferred tax and other 
statutory taxes. Income tax expense is recognized in 
Statement of Comprehensive Income except to the extent 
that it relates to items recognized directly in the Statement 
of Other Comprehensive Income or Statement of Changes 
in Equity.

3.11.1 Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the 
taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted 
or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any 
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. 
Current tax payable also includes any tax liability arising 
from the tax on dividend income.

The provision for income tax is based on the elements 
of income and expenditure as reported in the financial 
statements and computed in accordance with the 
provisions of the Inland Revenue Act. No 10 of 2006 and 
subsequent amendments thereto.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior 
periods are measured at the amount expected to be 
recovered from or paid to the Commissioner General of 
Inland Revenue.

3.11.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary 
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts 
used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognized 
for:

assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business 
combination and that affects neither accounting nor 
taxable Profit or Loss;

subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent 
that it is probable that they will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future; and

recognition of goodwill.

associates or joint ventures who have not distributed 
their entire profits to the parent or investor.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected 
to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, 
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and 
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same 
tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax 
entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and 
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will 
be realized simultaneously.
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A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, 
tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to the 
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax 
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related 
tax benefits will be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The net increase in the carrying amount of deferred tax 
liability net of deferred tax asset is recognized as deferred 
tax expense and conversely any net decrease is recognized 
as reversal to deferred tax expense, in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income.

3.11.3  Accounting for deferred tax for the companies  
 enjoying tax holidays

Group companies enjoying a tax exemption period shall 
only recognize deferred tax in their Financial Statements 
for temporary differences, where reversals of such 
differences extend beyond the tax exemption period.

Deferred Tax shall not be considered nor provided for 
assets/liabilities for which tax impacts and reversals take 
place within the tax exemption period. There will be no tax 
implications that take place a�er the expiration of the tax 
exemption period for such assets.

Where a Company is entitled to claim the total value or any 
part of expenditure made during the tax holiday period, as 
deductions for tax purposes a�er the tax holiday period, 
such an entity will treat such amount of expenditure as 
part of the tax base throughout the tax holiday period in 
the purpose of recognizing deferred tax.

3.11.4 Withholding tax on dividends

Dividend distributed out of taxable profit of the local 
companies attracts a 10% deduction at source and is not 
available for set off against the tax liability of the Company. 
Withholding tax that arises from the distribution of 
dividends by the Company is recognized at the same time 
as the liability to pay the related dividend is recognized.

3.11.5 Economic service charge (ESC)

As per the provisions of Economic Service Charge Act No. 
13 of 2006 amendments thereto, ESC is payable on the 
liable turnover at specified rates. ESC is deductible from 
the income tax liability. Any unclaimed amount can be 
carried forward and set off against the income tax payable 
in the four subsequent years as per the relevant provision 
in the Act.

3.11.6 Nation building tax (NBT)

As per the provisions of the Nation Building Tax Act, No. 9 
of 2009 and the subsequent amendments thereto, Nation 
Building Tax should be payable at the rate of 2% with 
effect from 1 January 2011 on the liable turnover as per 
the relevant provisions of the Act.

3.11.7 Sales taxes (value added tax and turnover tax)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the 
amount of sales tax except for the following;

is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which 
case the sales tax is recognized as part of the cost of 
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item 
as applicable; and

amount of sales tax included.

  The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or 
payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of 
other receivables or other payables in the statement of 
financial position.

3.12 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets 
that take a substantial period of time to get ready for its 
intended use or sale, are capitalized as part of the assets. 

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying 
asset are recognized in Statement of Comprehensive 
Income using the effective interest method.

 OTHER NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

Liabilities are recognized in the Statement of Financial 
Position when there is a present obligation as a result of a 
past event, the settlement of which is expected to result 
in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits. 
Obligations payable at the demand of the creditor within 
one year of the reporting date are treated as current 
liabilities. Liabilities payable a�er one year from the 
reporting date are treated as non-current liabilities.

3.13 Financial liabilities

The Group initially recognizes borrowings on the date 
that they are originated. All other financial liabilities are 
recognized at initially on the trade date, which is the date 
that the Group becomes party to the contractual provisions 
of the instruments. 

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its 
contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled or 
expired. 

Other financial liabilities comprise of bank overdra�, 
customer deposits

3.13.1 Finance leases

Property and Equipment on finance leases, which 
effectively transfer to the company substantially the entire 
risk and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased 
items, are disclosed as finance leases at their cash price 
and depreciated over the period the Company is expected 
to benefit from the use of the leased assets.
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The corresponding principal amount payable to the lessor 
is shown as a liability. Lease payments are apportioned 
between the finance charges and reduction of the lease 
liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the 
outstanding balance of the liability. The interest payable 
over the period of the lease is transferred to an interest 
in suspense account. The interest element of the rental 
obligations pertaining to each financial year is charged to 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the period 
of lease. 

3.13.2 Lease payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognized 
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of 
the lease. Lease incentives received are recognized as an 
integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of 
the lease.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases 
are apportioned between the finance expense and the 
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense 
is allocated to each period during the lease term so as 
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the 
remaining balance of the liability.

3.14 Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, 
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation 
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an 
outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the 
obligation. 

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected 
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflect current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the liability.

3.15 Employee benefits

3.15.1 Defined contribution plans
 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit 
plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into 
a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive 
obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for 
contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized 
as an employee benefit expense in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income in the periods during which 
services are rendered by employees.

3.15.1.1 Employees’ provident fund(EPF) 

The Company and employees contribute 12% and 8% 
respectively on the salary of each employee to the above 
mentioned funds.

3.15.1.2 Employees’ trust fund (ETF)

The Company contributes 3% of the salary of each 
employee to the Employees’ Trust Fund.

3.15.2 Defined benefits plans 

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan 
other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s 
net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans 
is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit 
that employees have earned in return for their service in 
the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to 
determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service 
costs are deducted.

The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary 
using the projected unit credit method. For the purpose 
of determining the charge for any period before the next 
regular actuarial valuation falls due, an approximate 
estimate provided by the qualified actuary is used. 

When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of 
the increased benefit related to past service by employees 
is recognized in Profit or Loss on a straight-line basis over 
the average period until the benefits become vested. To 
the extent that the benefits vest immediately, the expense 
is recognized immediately in Statement of Comprehensive 
Income.

The Group recognizes all actuarial gains and losses arising 
from the defined benefit plan in other comprehensive 
income (OCI) and all other expenses related to defined 
benefit plans are recognize as personnel expenses in 
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

This retirement benefit obligation is not externally funded.

3.15.3 Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured 
on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related 
service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount 
expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus if the 
company has a present legal or constructive obligation to 
pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the 
employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

3.16 Accounts payables and accrued expenses

Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if 
payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are 
presented as non-current liabilities.

 Trade and other payables are stated at cost.

3.17 Provisions, contingent assets and contingent  
 liabilities

Provisions are made for all obligations (legal or 
constructive) existing as at the Financial Position date 
when it is probable that such an obligation will result in an 
outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made 
of the quantum of the outflow. The amount recognized is 
the best estimate of the consideration required to settle 
the present obligation at the reporting date, taking into 
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation at that date.
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All contingent liabilities are disclosed as a note to the 
Financial Statements unless the outflow of resources is 
remote. Contingent assets are disclosed, where inflow of 
economic benefit is probable.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

3.18 Revenue 

Gross income comprises of revenue, and other operational 
income other than those relating to contributions from 
equity participants.

The following are the main components of the revenue.
Accommodation Sales, Service Charge, Food and Beverages 
income and outlet sales.

Revenue is income that arises in the course of ordinary 
activities of an enterprise. 

3.18.1 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable 
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group, and the 
revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred 
can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable, net of 
trade discounts and value added taxes, net of sales within 
the Group.

The company recognizes revenue when the amount of 
revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable that 
the future economic benefits will flow to the entity. 

3.18.1.1 Revenue from accommodation sales and services  
 charge

Revenue from accommodation sales is recognized for the 
rooms occupied on a daily basis, together with outlet sales 
and other income from hotel operations. 

90% of service charge collected from guests is distributed 
among the employees, retaining 10% of such service 
charge collected for recovery of breakages of cutlery, 
crockery, glassware and stainless steel items. Any balance 
amount of the retention a�er recovery of actual breakages 
is redistributed among employees at the end of each 
financial year.

3.18.1.2 Other income

Rent income, non-operational interest incomes are 

accounted for on accrual basis.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive 

payment is established. 

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and 

other non-current assets, including investments held by 

the Group have been accounted for in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income, a�er deducting from the net 

sales proceeds on disposal of the carrying amount of such 

assets.

3.19 Expenses recognition

Expenses are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive 

Income on the basis of a direct association between the 

cost incurred and the earning of specific items of income. 

All expenditure incurred in the running of the business and 

in maintaining the property, plant and equipment in a state 

of efficiency has been charged to income in arriving at the 

profit for the year.

For the presentation of the Statement of Comprehensive 

Income the Directors are of the opinion that the nature 

of the expenses method present fairly the element of 

the Group’s performance, and hence such presentation 

method is adopted.

Preliminary and pre-operational expenditure is recognized 

in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Repairs and renewals are charged to the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income in the year in which the expenditure 

is incurred.

3.20 Finance income and finance costs

Finance income comprises interest income on funds 

invested, gains on the disposal of financial assets, fair value 

gains on financial assets. Interest income is recognized 

as it accrues in Profit or Loss, using the effective interest 

method. 

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings 

and impairment losses recognized on financial assets 

(other than trade receivables), are recognized in the 

Statement of Comprehensive Income.

3.21 The company profits are stated a�er:

property, plant and equipment.

operations of the business and in maintaining the 

property, plant and equipment in a state of efficiency.

3.22 Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share 

data for its ordinary shares. Basic earnings per share 

is calculated by dividing the Profit or Loss attributable 

to ordinary shareholders of the Parent Company by the 

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 

during the year. Diluted earnings per share is determined 

by adjusting the Profit or Loss attributable to ordinary 

shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary 

shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential 

ordinary shares.
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3.23 Cash flow statement

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using the 

‘Indirect Method’ of preparing Cash Flows in accordance 

with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard (LKAS 7) ‘Cash 

Flow Statements.’ Cash and cash equivalents comprise 

short term, highly liquid investments that are readily 

convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to 

an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and 

cash at banks and other highly liquid financial assets 

which are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash 

commitments with original maturities of less than three 

months which are subject to insignificant risk of changes 

in their fair value.

3.24 Related party disclosures

3.24.1 Transactions with related parties

The Company carries out transactions in the ordinary 

course of its business with parties who are defined as 

related parties in Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 24. 

3.24.2 Transactions with key management personnel

According to Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 24 “Related 

Party Disclosures”, Key management personnel, are those 

having authority and responsibility for planning, directing 

and controlling the activities of the entity. Accordingly, the 

Board of Directors (including executive and non-executive 

Directors), personnel that hold designation of Deputy 

General Manager and above positions and their immediate 

family member have been classified as Key Management 

Personnel of the Company.

The immediate family member is defined as spouse or 

dependent. Dependent is defined as anyone who depends 

on the respective Key Management Personnel for more 

than 50% of his/her financial needs.

3.25 Subsequent events

All material subsequent events have been considered and 

where appropriate adjustments or disclosures have been 

made in the respective Notes to the Financial Statements.

3.26 Commitments and contingencies

All discernible risks are accounted for in determining the 
amount of all known liabilities. Contingent Liabilities are 
possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed 
only by uncertain future events or present obligations 
where the transfer of economic benefit is not probable or 
cannot be reliably measured. Contingent Liabilities are not 
recognized in the Statement of Financial Position but are 
disclosed unless they are remote.

3.27 Operating Segments

An operating segment is a component of the Group that 
engages in business activities from which it may earn 
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and 
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the 
Group’s other components. However there are no identified 
segments within the Group.  

3.28 New accounting standards issued but not effective as 
 at reporting date

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka has 
issued the following standards which become effective 
for the financial periods beginning on or a�er 01st January 
2014.  Accordingly these standards have not been applied 
in preparing these financial statements. The Group will be 
adopting these standards when they become effective.

3.28.1 SLFRS 9 - Financial instruments

SLFRS 9 -  Financial Instruments, which will replaces the 
provisions of LKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement on classification and measurement 
of financial assets and requirements with respect to the 
classification and measurement of financial liabilities, the 
de-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities 
and how to measure fair value were added to SLFRS 9. 
Most of these requirements have been carried forward 
without substantive amendments from LKAS 39. However, 
to address the issue of own credit risk some changes was 
made to the fair value option for financial liabilities.

The standard is applied retrospectively in accordance 
with LKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors with certain exemptions.
SLFRS 09 is effective for annual periods beginning on or 
a�er 1 January 2014. 

3.28.2 SLFRS 10 - Consolidated financial statements

SLFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, which 
replaces LKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial 
Statements and SIC-12 Consolidation-Special Purpose 
Entities. Additionally, the ICASL published SLFRS - 12 
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and LKAS 27 
Separate Financial Statements.

The main changes from LKAS 27 and SIC-12 are a single 
control model is applied to determine whether an investee 
should be consolidated, Control assessment includes 
consideration of substantive potential voting rights as 
opposed to currently exercisable potential voting rights, 
Guidance is provided for assessing whether the investor is 
a principal or an agent in respect of its relationship with 
the investee. A principal could consolidate an investee 
whereas an agent would not because the linkage between 
power and returns is not present. SLFRS 10 is effective for 
annual periods beginning on or a�er 1 January 2014. 
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3.28.3 SLFRS 11 - Joint arrangements

SLFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, which replaces LKAS 31 
Interests in Joint Ventures and SIC-13 Jointly Controlled 
Entities - Non-Monetary Contributions by Ventures. SLFRS 
11 also amends LKAS 28 Investments in Associates.

The following are the main changes from LKAS 31;
The structure of the joint arrangement, although still an 
important consideration, is no longer the main factor in 
determining the type of joint arrangement and therefore 
the subsequent accounting and If a joint arrangement is 
determined to be a joint venture, then the joint venture 
accounts for its investment using the equity method in 
accordance with LKAS 28 Investments in Associates and 
Joint Ventures; the free choice between using either the 
equity method or proportionate consolidation has been 
eliminated.

SLFRS 11 is effective for annual periods beginning on or 
a�er 1 January 2014. 

3.28.4 SLFRS 12 - Disclosure of interests in other entities

SLFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities is a 
consolidated disclosure standard requiring a wide range of 
disclosures about an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint 
arrangements, associates and unconsolidated ‘structured 
entities’. 

The objective of SLFRS 12 is to require the disclosure of 
information that enables users of Financial Statements 
to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated with, its 
interests in other entities, the effects of those interests on 
its financial position, financial performance and cash flows.
SLFRS 12 is effective for annual periods beginning on or 
a�er 1 January 2014. 

3.28.5 SLFRS 13 - Fair value measurement

SLFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement applies to SLFRSs that 
require or permit fair value measurements or disclosures 
and provides a single SLFRS framework for measuring 
fair value and requires disclosures about fair value 
measurement. The Standard defines fair value on the basis 
of an ‘exit price’ notion and uses a ‘fair value hierarchy’, 
which results in a market-based, rather than entity-
specific, measurement.

SLFRS 13, defines fair value, sets out in a single SLFRS 
a framework for measuring fair value and requires 
disclosures about fair value measurements. 

SLFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or 
a�er 1 January 2014. 
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Note

Group Company

2014
Rs.

2014
Rs.

2013
Rs.

 4 Revenue

Gross revenue  857,494,429  707,012,168  871,054,950 

Less - Revenue taxes 4.1 (114,523,581)  (92,559,927) (116,062,730)

Net revenue  742,971,348  614,452,241  754,992,220 

 4.1 Revenue taxes

Value added tax  91,560,714  74,078,840  93,330,088 

Nation building tax  15,867,974  12,710,538  15,666,033 

Tourism development levy  7,094,893  5,770,549  7,066,609 

 114,523,581  92,559,927  116,062,730 

4.2 The breakup of Gross Revenue is as follows:

Accommodation revenue   463,465,213 376,041,213 467,222,965

Package revenue 283,656,500 244,048,500 289,377,694

Outlet revenue 110,372,716 86,922,455 114,454,291

 857,494,429  707,012,168  871,054,950

Gross revenue includes service charge amounting to Rs. 56,180,573/= for the financial year 2013/14. (2012/13  Rs.69,085,654/=)

Group Company

2014
Rs.

2014
Rs.

2013
Rs.

 5 Other income/ (expenses)

Rental income  1,681,541  1,267,326  1,638,580 

Dividend Income  30,510  30,510  20,340 

Gain/ (loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment  5,433,915  5,853,234  10,095,000 

Foreign exchange gain /(loss)  5,169,009  5,325,087  (8,420,076)

Sundry income  5,946,691  4,732,273  2,193,984 

Other operating income  1,320,885  1,320,885  5,667,072 

Less: other related expenses (747,786)    (747,786)  (1,355,380)

Total other income/ (expenses)  18,834,766  17,781,530  9,839,520 

Group Company

2014
Rs.

2014
Rs.

2013
Rs.

6 Personnel costs

Salaries, wages and other benefits  (113,999,955)  (97,931,564)  (75,110,609)

Contribution to EPF  (7,053,848)  (6,208,237)  (5,224,293)

Contribution to ETF  (1,763,462)  (1,552,060)  (1,306,072)

Retirement benefit cost  (3,165,950)  (2,397,790)  (1,656,766)

(125,983,216)  (108,089,651)  (83,297,740)
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Notes

Group Company

2014
Rs.

2014
Rs.

2013
Rs.

7 Results From Operating Activities

Results from operating activities are stated a�er charging all 
expenses including following:

Directors' remuneration  4,174,524  2,435,138  14,886,858 

Auditors’ fees and expenses 7.1  790,000  565,000  625,000 

Legal expenses  128,148  80,448  114,652 

Secretarial fees  582,209  567,457  480,156 

Professional fees  3,276,654  2,772,345  1,211,971 

Advertising related expenses  7,050,496  6,112,930  5,646,415 

Donations  284,239  244,239  71,612 

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13  68,617,774  59,961,436  48,708,943 

Amortization of intangible assets 15.1  195,039  195,038  195,038 

 68,812,813  60,156,474  48,903,981 

7.1 Auditors fees and expenses

Remuneration for - audit 790,000 565,000 550,000

                              - non audit - - 75,000

790,000 565,000 625,000

8 Share of profit/(loss) of equity accounted investees
(net of income tax) 

Share of associate company profit/(loss)  153,416  153,416  (262,826)

 153,416  153,416  (262,826)

9 Net finance income/(cost)

Interest income on;

Interest on deposits  3,618,253  3,618,253  34,577,796 

Interest income on loans  48,770,000  66,712,329  5,146,151 

 52,388,253  70,330,582  39,723,947 

Interest expense on;

Overdra� and other short-term borrowings  (66,764,564)  (66,764,564)  (3,655)

Long term borrowings  (57,143,434)  (72,105,074)  (8,893,684)

Finance leases  (161,880)  -    -   

 (124,069,878)  (138,869,638)  (8,897,339)

Net finance income/(cost)  (71,681,625)  (68,539,056)  30,826,608 

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
�CONTD�



39

 10 Income tax expense

The Company is liable for tax at the rate of 12% on its taxable income on operating activities in accordance with the Inland Revenue 
Act No 10 of 2006 and subsequent amendments made thereto. 

For the year ended 31 March
Group Company

Notes
2014
Rs.

2014
Rs.

2013
Rs.

10.1 Major components of income tax expense are as follows:

Current tax expense 10.3  (13,267,891)  (13,162,856)  (42,546,805)

Deferred tax expense 29.2  8,336,020  (337,514)  (1,223,651)

Deferred Tax impact on Deemed Cost 29.2  -    -    1,333,367 

Income tax expense reported in the statement of comprehensive income  (4,931,871)  (13,500,370) (42,437,089)

 10.2 Numerical reconciliation of accounting profits to income tax expense

Profit before income tax expense  63,801,530  28,298,497  254,291,614 

(+) Disallowable expenses  72,499,534  64,416,096  76,539,694 

(-) Allowable expenses  (123,414,322)  (114,803,223)  (31,354,000)

(-) Tax exempt income  (75,795,007)  (75,795,007)  (44,693,136) 

(+) Tax losses incurred                                    95,158,443    95,158,443 -   

(-) Tax losses utilised  (59,591,075)    (24,615,704) -   

(+/-) Other adjustments

         Interest income on fixed deposits 70,330,582 70,330,582 34,577,796

         Business profit/(loss) on disposal of capital assets 2,868,034 2,868,034 10,291,000

Taxable Income  45,857,718  45,857,718  299,652,969 

Income tax @

28%  13,267,891  13,162,856  9,681,783 

12%  -    -    31,809,022 

10%  -    -    1,056,000 

Total tax expense  13,267,891  13,162,856  42,546,805 

10.3 Current tax expense

Tax expense  13,267,891  13,162,856  41,490,805 

Deemed dividend tax paid  -    -    1,056,000 

 13,267,891  13,162,856  42,546,805 

10.4 Tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Deferred tax on revaluation surplus  8,457,483  8,457,483  62,162,175 

Tax on defined benefit plan actuarial gains/(losses) for the year  (467,725)  (362,690) - 

 7,989,758  8,094,793  62,162,175  
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For the year ended 31 March
Group Company

2014

Rs.

2014

Rs.

2013

Rs.

Profit attributable to shareholders  58,869,659  14,798,126  211,854,526 

Number of ordinary shares  52,800,000  52,800,000  52,800,000 

Earnings per share  1.11  0.28  4.01 

Diluted Earnings per Share

There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding at any time during the year ended 31 March 2014.Therefore diluted 

earnings per share is same as basic earnings per share reported above. 

12 Dividend per share

During the financial year, the company paid an interim dividend amounting to Rs .16,896,000   

 

For the year ended 31 March
Group Company

2014

Rs.

2014

Rs.

2013

Rs.

Dividend paid  16,896,000  16,896,000  10,560,000 

Number of ordinary shares  52,800,000  52,800,000  52,800,000 

 0.32  0.32  0.20 

11 Earnings per share 

Basic earning per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on profit for the period attributable to the ordinary shareholders and the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares being outstanding during the period and calculated as follows;
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13 Property, plant and equipment-Group

 
Freehold                  

Lands

Freehold 

Buildings

Freehold 

Motor 

Vehicles

Leasehold 

Motor 

Vehicles

Furniture & 

Fittings

Cutlery, 

Crockery & 

Glassware

Freehold 

Plant & 

Machinery

Computers Freehold 

Plant & 

Machinery

Linen & 

Furnishing Total

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cost/Valuation

Effect on consolidation  437,348,000  1,556,767,850  2,575,168  -    175,973,624  16,385,606  -    224,382,581  47,912,369  20,000,000  2,481,345,198 

Acquision of subsidiary  1,203,835,939  449,438,100  3,700,000  7,999,999  19,769,702  36,518  2,833,282  20,970,553  4,132,967  -    1,712,717,060 

Additions  -    224,806,869  -    -    79,761,504  3,307,973  -    74,006,351  16,697,050  28,370,988  426,950,736 

Revaluations  130,152,000  38,929,700  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (3,370,988)  165,710,712 

Disposals  -    -    -    -    (9,557,550)  -    -    (3,155,500)  -    -    (12,713,050)

Transfers / WIP transfers  -    -    4,285,714  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    4,285,714 

Balance as at31 March 2014  1,771,335,939  2,269,942,519  10,560,882  7,999,999  265,947,280  19,730,097  2,833,282  316,203,985  68,742,386  45,000,000  4,778,296,369 

Accumulated Depreciation and impairement losses

Effect on consolidation  -    -    707,487  -    143,916,380  13,454,864  -    159,773,455  33,508,043  -    351,360,228 

Acquision of subsidiary  16,561  233,480  630,209  2,035,635  2,101,056  1,501  880,823  3,905,757  3,374,314  -    13,179,336 

Charge for the year  471,207  35,732,712  824,967  268,532  6,255,721  1,027,315  271,393  15,048,272  6,018,096  2,699,559  68,617,774 

Revaluations  -    (32,220,758)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (2,699,559)  (34,920,317)

Depreciation on disposals  -    -    -    -    (9,557,550)  -    -    (3,155,500)  -    -    (12,713,050)

Depreciation on transfers  -    -    4,285,714  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    4,285,714 

Balance as at 31 March 2014  487,768  3,745,434  6,448,377  2,304,167  142,715,607  14,483,680  1,152,216  175,571,984  42,900,453  -    389,809,686 

Carrying Amount

As at 31 March 2014  1,770,848,171  2,266,197,085  4,112,505  5,695,832  123,231,673  5,246,417  1,681,066  140,632,001  25,841,933  45,000,000  4,388,486,683 

13.1 Property, plant & equipment included fully depreciated assets that are still in use having a gross amount of Rs. 251,258,504 /- as at 31st March 2014 

(2013 - Rs. 223,002,462).

 13.2 Details of company land and Building are stated bellow.

Property Property Valuer  Land Extent  Building Extent Revalued Amount Revalued Date

Rs.

Land & Building at Kaluwamodara, Aluthgama  Mr. P.W. Senarathna  6A-00R-15-66P  238,353 sq�s  2,428,000,000 31.03.2014

Land & Building at Dickwella  Mr. P.W. Senarathna  8A-1R-33-18P  91,899 sq�s  1,647,993,100 30.10.2013

Cost as at

31.3.2014 

Rs.

 Accumulated 

Depreciation 

31.3.2014 

Rs.

Net book value 

as at 31.3.2014 

Rs.

Land 56,575,923  -    56,575,923 

Building  1,082,805,910 (53,008,334)  1,029,797,566 

 1,139,381,833  (53,008,334) 1,086,373,499 

13.3 The carrying amount of property that would have been included in the financial statements had the asset been stated at cost less accumulated 

depreciation is as follows.

13.4 The capitalize borrowing cost related to the acquisition of property plant and equipment during the year is Rs. Nil.  (2012/13  - Nil)
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13 Property, plant and equipment-Company

 
Freehold                  

Lands

Freehold 

Buildings

Freehold 

Motor 

Vehicles

Furniture & 

Fittings

Linen & 

Furnishing
Swimming Pool

Freehold Plant 

& Machinery

Cutlery & 

Crockery and 

Glassware
Rs.

Total

Rs.

Cost/Valuation

Balance as at 01 April 2013  437,348,000  1,556,767,850  2,575,168  175,973,624  47,912,369  20,000,000  224,382,581  16,385,606  2,481,345,198 

Additions  -    219,802,450  -    76,690,769  14,071,616  28,370,988  61,185,740  1,224,070  401,345,634 

Revaluations  130,152,000  38,929,700  (3,370,988)  165,710,712 

Disposals  (9,557,550)  (3,155,500)  (12,713,050)

Transfers  4,285,714  4,285,714 

Balance as at 31 March 2014  567,500,000  1,815,500,000  6,860,882  252,664,393  52,426,435  45,000,000  282,412,821  17,609,676  3,039,974,207 

Accumulated Depreciation and impairment losses

Balance as at 01 April 2013  -    -    707,487  143,916,380  33,508,044  -    159,773,455  13,454,864  351,360,229 

Charge for the year  32,220,758  320,800  5,519,150  5,677,219  2,699,559  12,581,229  942,721  59,961,436 

Revaluations  (32,220,758)  (2,699,559)  (34,920,317)

Depreciation on disposals  (9,557,550)  (3,155,500)  (12,713,050)

Depreciation on transfers  4,285,714  4,285,714 

Balance as at 31 March 2014  -    5,314,001  139,877,979  39,185,263  -    169,199,185  14,397,585  367,974,012 

Carrying Amount

As at 31 March 2014  567,500,000  1,815,500,000  1,546,881  112,786,414  13,241,173  45,000,000  113,213,636  3,212,091  2,672,000,195 

As at 31 March 2013  437,348,000  1,556,767,850  1,867,681  32,057,244  14,404,326  20,000,000  64,609,127  2,930,742  2,129,984,970 

13.1 Property, plant & equipment included fully depreciated assets that are still in use having a gross amount of Rs. 251,258,504 /- as at 31st March 2014 

(2013 - Rs. 223,002,462).

13.2 The Land and Buildings of the Company were revalued at Rs. 2,428,000,000/= By independent professional valuer Mr. P. W. Senarathna and  incorporated 

in the company’s books on 31st March 2014.  The balance of Rs.200,631,028/= which resulted as the excess over the net book value of the assets  has 

been credited to the revaluation reserve. 

Date of valuation       -    31st March 2014

Valuation Method      -    Sales comparison and cost method 

 13.3 Details of company land and Building are stated bellow.

Property Property Valuer  Land Extent  Building Extent Revalued Amount Revalued Date

Rs.

Land & Building at Kaluwamodara, Aluthgama  Mr. P. W. Senarathna  6A-00R-15-66P  238,353 sq�s  2,428,000,000 31.03.2014

The carrying amount of property that would have been included in the Financial statements had the asset been stated at cost less deprecation is as follows

Cost as at

31.3.2014 

Rs.

 Accumulated 

Depreciation 

31.3.2014 

Rs.

Net book value 

as at 31.3.2014 

Rs.

Land  53,759,987  -    53,759,987 

Building  656,406,231  (50,165,680)  606,240,552 

 710,166,218  (50,165,680)  660,000,539 

13.5 The capitalize borrowing cost related to the acquisition of property plant and equipment during the year is Rs. Nil.  (2012/13  - Nil)

13.4
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For the year ended 31 March
Group Company

Notes
2014

Rs.

2014

Rs.

2013

Rs.

15 Intangible assets 

Computer so�ware 15.1  431,765  431,765  626,803 

431,765    431,765  626,803 

15.1 Intangible assets - group

Cost/Valuation Effect of 
Consolidation

Additions Transfers Disposals Other 
adjustments

Balance as at 
31 March 2014

Computer So�ware  1,560,311  -    -    -    -    1,560,311 

 1,560,311  -    -    -    -    1,560,311 

Accumulated amortization and impairment losses

Effect of 
Consolidation

Charge 
for the 
year

Transfers Disposals Other 
adjustments

Balance as at 
31 March 2014

Computer So�ware  933,508  195,039  1,128,547 

 933,508  195,039  -    -    -    1,128,547 

Carrying amount as a 31st 

March

431,765

15.1 Intangible assets - company

Cost/Valuation Balance as at 
01 April 2013

Additions Transfers Disposals Balance as at 
31 March 2014

Computer so�ware  1,560,311  -    -    -    1,560,311 

 1,560,311  -    -    -    1,560,311 

Accumulated amortization and impairement losses

Balance as at 

01 April 2013

Charge for 

the year

Transfers Disposals Balance as at 

31 March 2014

Computer so�ware  933,508  195,039  1,128,547 

 933,508  195,039  -    -    1,128,547 

Carrying amount as a 31st March 628,803 431,765

For the year ended 31 March
Group Company

Note
2014

Rs.

2014

Rs.

2013

Rs.

14 Goodwill on acquisition

Acquisition during the year 16.2  67,685,314  -    -   

 67,685,314  -    -   

During the year goodwill was recorded from acquision of Dickwella Resorts (Pvt) Ltd. Goodwill as at the reporting date has been 
tested for impairment and found no impairment for the carrying value.   
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No. of 
Shares

Percentage
Holding

Group Company

2014
Rs.

2014
Rs.

2013
Rs.

 16 Investments in subsidiary companies 

Dickwella Resorts (Private) Limited  481,314 99.99%  -    1,507,500,000  -   

 -    1,507,500,000  -   

 16.1 Group Holding in Subsidiaries Principle 

Activities

 No of 

Shares 

 Control 

Holding 

Dickwella Resorts (Private) Limited Hotelier  481,314 99.99%

 16.2 Acquisition of Dickwella Resorts (Private) Limited - 

In November 2013, Eden Hotel Lanka  PLC  acquired 99.9% of the voting rights of Dickwella Resorts (Private) Limited whose principal activity 
is operating as a hotelier. The acquisition has been accounted for using acquisition method.  

The provisional fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Dickwella Resorts (Private) Limited  (based on un-audited financial 
statements) as at the date of acquisition were;        

Amount

Rs.

Assets

Property, plant and equipment  1,699,537,724 

Trade and other current assets  25,736,767 

Inventories  3,981,815 

Cash and cash equivalents  15,237,291 

 1,744,493,597 

Liabilities  -   

Interest bearing borrowings;  109,684,603 

Deferred tax liabilities  47,742,713 

Retirement benefit obligations  2,475,480 

Trade and other payables  152,276,114 

 312,178,910 

Equity  -   

Stated capital  48,171,500 

Reserves  1,495,202,587 

Retained earnings/(loss)  (111,059,401)

 1,432,314,686 

Goodwill is recognized as a result of the acquisition as follows;

Fair value of consideration paid  1,500,000,000 

Non-controlling interests acquired  -   

 1,500,000,000 

Fair value of Identifiable net assets acquired  1,432,314,686 

Goodwill  67,685,314 

Net cash used for acquisition

Purchase consideration paid 1,500,000,000

Cash and cash equivalents acquired (15,237,291)

1,484,762,709
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 18 Loans due from related parties 

For the year ended 31 March
Group Company

2014
Rs.

2014
Rs.

2013
Rs.

Dickwella Resorts (Pvt) Limited  -    107,118,393  107,118,393 

Palm Garden Hotels PLC  285,705,378  285,705,378  285,705,378 

 285,705,378  392,823,771  392,823,771 

 18.1 Loan disclosure

In 2012/13 financial year,  Eden Hotel Lanka PLC granted two loans to its related companies. These two loans were granted to 
those companies inorder to settle the liabilities. The related details are as follows.    

Company Relationship Interest Rate Amount

Dickwella Resorts (Pvt) Limited Subsidiary 16.75%  107,118,393 

Plam Garden Hotels PLC.
Immediate 
Parent

16.75%  285,705,378 

 19 Investment securities

For the year ended 31 March
Note

Group Company

2014
Rs.

2014
Rs.

2013
Rs.

Available-for-sale investment securities  19.1  661,443  661,443  672,017 

Loans and receivables  19.2  -    -    8,550,306 

 661,443  661,443 9,222,323

17 Investments in equity accounted investee

Holding Number of Shares Cost 

Group Company Group Company Group Company

2014 2014 2013 2014 2014 2013 2014
Rs.

2014
Rs.

2013
Rs.

Central Services (Pvt) Ltd 33.42% 33.42% 33.42% 268 268 268  2,476,666 2,476,666  2,323,250 

268 268 268  2,476,666 2,476,666  2,323,250

17.1 Investments in equity accounted investee

Unquoted Investment
Group Company

2014
Rs.

2014
Rs.

2013
Rs.

Central Services (Pvt) Limited  29,927,739  29,927,739  30,190,565 

Provision for Impairment  (27,604,489)  (27,604,489)  (27,604,489)

Share of result during the year  153,416  153,416  (262,826)

 2,476,666  2,476,666  2,323,250 

17.2 A provision for impairment was made with regard to the investment in Central Services (Pvt) Ltd. in 2011/12 financial year which 
amounts to Rs. 27,604,489. This is due to the reason of  net assets attributable to Eden Hotel Lanka PLC, from Central Services 
(Pvt) Ltd. is less than the current investment value.
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 19.1 Available-for-sale investment securities

For the year ended 31 March
Note

Group Company

2014 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Designated available-for-sale investment securities 19.1.1  393,250  393,250  377,430 

Unquoted equity securities 19.1.2  268,193  268,193  294,587 

 661,443  661,443  672,017 

19.1.1     Designated available-for-sale investment securities

 As at 31 March Group

2014

Company

2014

Company

2013

 
No. of 
Shares

Cost
Fair 

Value
No. of 
Shares

Cost
Fair 

Value
No. of 
Shares

Cost
Fair 

Value

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Raigam Wayamba Salterns PLC  26,200  65,500  57,640  26,200  65,500  57,640  26,200  65,500  57,640 

Vallible Finance PLC  11,300  248,600  335,610  11,300  248,600  335,610  11,300  248,600 319,790 

-  314,100  393,250 -  314,100  393,250 -  314,100 377,430

19.1.2       Unquoted equity investments

 As at 31 March Group

2014

Company

2014

Company

2013

 
No. of 

Shares
Cost

Fair 

Value

No. of 

Shares
Cost

Fair 

Value

No. of 

Shares
Cost

Fair 

Value

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Rainforest Eco lodge (Pvt) Limited  37,000  370,000  268,193  37,000  370,000  268,193  37,000  370,000  294,587 

-  370,000  268,193 -  370,000  268,193 -  370,000  294,587 

19.2 Loans and  receivables 

As at 31 March
Group Company

2014

Rs.

2014

Rs.

2013

Rs.

Investments in term deposits  -    -    8,550,306 

 -    -    8,550,306 

20  Inventories 

As at 31 March
Group Company

2014

Rs.

2014

Rs.

2013

Rs.

Food and beverages  6,725,315  5,166,325  4,776,426 

Maintenance  12,772,628  11,251,889  6,648,683 

Others  1,537,090  1,220,739  1,146,878 

 21,035,033  17,638,953  12,571,988 
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 21 Trade and other receivable

As at 31 March
Note

Group Company

2014 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Financial assets   

Trade receivables  21.1  221,429,709  158,059,648  133,035,469 

Amount due from related parties  21.2  87,556,127  89,873,369  21,280,276 

Other debtors  13,705,717  13,705,717  37,324,374 

 322,691,552  261,638,734  191,640,119 

Non-financial assets

Deposits and prepayments  1,898,561  1,897,043  1,440,654 

 1,898,561  1,897,043  1,440,654 

 324,590,113  263,535,777  193,080,773 

 21.1 Trade receivables

As at 31 March
Group Company

2014 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Trade receivables  221,429,709  158,059,648  133,035,469 

 221,429,709    158,059,648  133,035,469 

 21.2 Amount due from related parties

For the year ended 31 March
Group Company

2014 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Lanka ORIX Leasing Company PLC  15,406,287  -    -   

Lanka ORIX Finance PLC  921,594  -    -   

Palm Garden Hotels PLC  68,888,625  68,115,106  19,416,131 

Dickwella Resorts (Pvt) Limited  -    19,466,198  1,541,619 

Tropical Villas (Pvt) Limited  231,869  184,313  322,526 

Riverina Resorts (Pvt) Ltd  2,107,752  2,107,752  -   

 87,556,127  89,873,369  21,280,276 

 22 Current tax assets

As at 31 March

Group Company

2014 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Income tax recoverable  2,357,552  -    -   

Value Added Tax recoverable  4,358,066  -    -   

With-Holding Tax recoverable  42,678  -    -   

 6,758,296  -    -   
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 23 Cash and cash equivalents

 23.1 Cash in hand and favorable bank balances

As at 31 March

Group Company

2014 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cash in hand    835,940  505,500  405,500 

Cash at banks  103,603,751  66,765,765  64,887,617 

Short Term Investments  5,202,603  5,202,603  -   

 109,642,294  72,473,868  65,293,117 

 23.2 Unfavorable bank balances used for cash management purposes

For the year ended 31 March

Group Company

2014 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Bank overdra�s  (8,783,756)  (8,783,756)  (13,737,805)

Net cash and cash equivalents  100,858,538  63,690,112  51,555,312 

24 Stated capital 

For the year ended 31 March

Group Company

2014 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Issued and Fully Paid

52,800,000 Ordinary Shares  528,000,000  528,000,000  528,000,000 

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive a dividend as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per 
share at meeting of the company. All shares ranked equally with regard to the company’s residual assets.

 24.1 Movement in stated capital

As at 31 March

Group Company

2014 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the period  528,000,000  528,000,000  528,000,000 

Balance at the end of the period  528,000,000  528,000,000  528,000,000 

 24.2 Movement in no. of shares

As at 31 March

Group Company

2014 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the period  52,800,000  52,800,000  52,800,000 

Balance at the end of the period  52,800,000  52,800,000  52,800,000 
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25 Reserves

Note

Group Company

2014 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Revaluation reserve  25.1  1,616,770,102  1,616,770,102 1,424,596,557

Fair value reserve on AFS  (22,657)  (22,657)  (12,083)

Total  1,616,747,446  1,616,747,446  1,424,584,474 

 25.1 Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve relates to the revaluation surplus of property, plant and equipment. Once the respective revalued items 
have been disposed, the relevant portion of revaluation surplus is transferred to retained earnings.

26 Retained earnings

For the year ended 31 March

Group Company

2014 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance brought forward  -    408,807,442  207,295,959 

Effect of Consolidation  408,807,443  -    -   

Defined benefit plan actuarial gain/(Loss)  (3,429,982)  (2,659,723)  216,958 

Net profit for the year  58,869,659  14,798,126  211,854,526 

Dividend paid  (16,896,000)  (16,896,000)  (10,560,000)

Balance at the end of the year  447,351,120  404,049,846  408,807,442 

The carrying amount of the retained earnings represent the undistributed earnings held by the company.  This could be used to 
absorb future losses  and dividend declarations . 

 27 Interest bearing borrowings

As at 31 March
Note

Group Company

2014 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Finance lease liabilities 27.1  1,991,071  -    -   

Long-term borrowings 27.2  2,040,000,000  1,880,000,000  5,000,000 

 2,041,991,071  1,880,000,000  5,000,000 

27.1 Finance Lease Liabilities

Finance lease liabilities 27.1.1  1,991,071  -    -   

 1,991,071  -    -   
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Group Company

2014 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs.

27.1.1 Finance lease liabilities

Effect of consolidation  2,566,210  -    -   

Lease rentals paid during the year  (442,450)  -   

Gross lease rentals payable as at 31 March  2,123,760  -    -   

Less: Unamortized finance cost  (132,689)

Net lease liability  1,991,071  -    -   

Repayable within one year

Gross lease rentals payable  1,061,880 

Less: Unamortized finance cost  (98,190)

Net lease liability  963,690  -    -   

Repayable a�er one year before five years

Gross lease rentals payable  1,061,880 

Less: Unamortized finance cost  (34,499)

Net lease liability  1,027,381  -    -   

Total  1,991,071  -    -   

27.2 Long-Term Borrowings

Gross Balance as at 01 April  5,000,000  5,000,000  17,000,000 

Received during the year  2,040,000,000  1,880,000,000  -   

Repaid during the year  (5,000,000)  (5,000,000)  (12,000,000)

Balance as at 31 March 2,040,000,000 1,880,000,000  5,000,000 

As at 31 March
Group Company

2014 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Analysis of long term borrowings

Long-term borrowings - current  540,000,000  380,000,000  5,000,000 

Long-term borrowings - non-current  1,500,000,000  1,500,000,000  -   

Total  2,040,000,000  1,880,000,000  5,000,000 

Analysis of non-current portion of long-term borrowings

Repayable within 3 years  600,000,000  600,000,000  -   

Repayable a�er 3 years  900,000,000  900,000,000  -   

Total  1,500,000,000  1,500,000,000  -   

Analysis of interest bearing borrowings 

Interest bearing borrowings  - current 540,963,690 380,000,000 5,000,000

Interest bearing borrowings  - non current 1,501,027,381 1,500,000,000 -

2,041,991,071 1,880,000,000 5,000,000
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As at 31 March
Note

Group Company

2014 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs.

 28 Employee benefits

Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligations

Balance as the beginning of the period  -    7,717,749  6,409,506 

Effect of Consolidation  7,717,749  -    -   

Acquisition of subsidiaries  2,475,480  -    -   

Benefits paid  (1,480,727)  (1,362,602)  (777,267)

Expenditure recognized in the income statement 28.1  3,165,950  2,397,790  1,656,766 

Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in OCI  3,897,706  3,022,413  (216,958)

Transfers  during the year  -    -    645,702 

Balance as at the end of the period  15,776,158  11,775,350  7,717,749 

28.1 Expense recognized in the income statement

Current service costs  2,038,165  1,542,308  705,046 

Interest costs  1,127,785  855,482  951,720 

 3,165,950  2,397,790  1,656,766 

Gratuity liability is based on the actuarial valuation carried out by Messrs. Actuarial and Management Consultants (Pvt) Limited. 
Actuaries, on 31 March 3014. The principle assumptions used are as follows.    

Group Company

Actuarial Assumptions 2014 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date

Discount rate 10% 10% 11%

Future salary increases 9% 9% 5%

Staff turnover factor 10% 10% 10%

Retirement Age  55 years   55 years   55 years  

28.2
Sensitivity of the actuarial 
assumptions

Sensitivity analysis on discounting rate and salary increment rate to statement of financial position and comprehensive income.

Group Company

Assumption
Rate 

change
Financial 

Position -Liability

Comprehensive 
Income - Charge 

for the period
Financial 

Position - Liability

Comprehensive 
Income - Charge 

for the period

Discount rate +1  15,112,287  841,355  11,185,767  648,942 

 -1  16,893,035  (939,393)  12,560,704  (725,995)

Future salary increases +1  16,973,385  (1,019,743)  12,619,850  (785,141)

 -1  15,025,273  928,369  11,121,431  713,278 
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As at 31 March

Group Company

2014 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs.

 29 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities are attributable to the originations 
of following temporary differences:   

Property, plant and equipment  1,522,131,277  1,100,800,400  1,028,957,625 

Revaluation of properties  627,256,183  588,497,155  518,018,127 

Unutilized tax losses  (159,203,130)  (70,542,739)

Employee benefits  (12,255,447)  (11,775,350)  (7,732,239)

Net taxable temporary difference  1,977,928,883  1,606,979,466 1,539,243,513 

Total recognized deferred tax liabilities  237,351,466  192,837,536  184,709,222 

29.1 Movement in recognized deferred tax liabilities

Balance as at the beginning of the period  -    184,709,222  122,656,763 

Effect of consolidation  184,709,222  -    -   

Reversal of deferred tax effect during the year  (666,684)  (666,684)  -   

Acquisition of subsidiary 53,187,465  -    -   

Originations / reversal to the income statement 29.2  (8,336,020)  337,514  1,223,651 

Directly charged to the equity 29.3  8,457,483  8,457,483  62,162,175 

Deemed cost impact to deferred tax 29.3  -    -    (1,333,367)

Balance as at the end of the period  237,351,466  192,837,536  184,709,222 

29.2 Deferred tax expense

For the year ended 31 March

Originations / reversal during the period  (8,336,020)  337,514  1,223,651 

Deemed cost impact to deferred tax  -    -    (1,333,367)

 (8,336,020)  337,514  (109,716)

29.3 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

According to Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 12 “Income Taxes”, deferred tax shall be charged or credited directly to equity 

if the tax relates to items that are credited or charged, in the same or in a different period, directly to equity. Accordingly, the 

deferred tax liability arising on revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment of Rs. 8,457,483 of the Company and Rs.8,457,483 

at the Group was charged directly to revaluation reserve in the Statement of Changes in Equity in 2013/14. 
(Company 2012/13 - 62,162,175) 
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30  Trade and other payables

As at 31 March
Note

Group Company

2014 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Financial liabilities

Trade payables  35,503,239  15,933,731  13,642,765 

Advance against reservation  49,432,843  49,432,843  66,935,878 

Amount due to related companies 30.1  131,795,518  128,465,928  70,239,024 

Other financial liabilities  9,103,995  9,102,477  3,419,077 

 225,835,595  202,934,979  154,236,744 

Non-financial liabilities

Unclaimed dividends  715,492  715,492  715,492 

Accrued expenses  66,639,647  66,639,647  51,797,013 

 67,355,139  67,355,139  52,512,505 

 293,190,733  270,290,117  206,749,249 

30.1 Amount due to related companies

LOLC Leisure Limited  103,019,226  102,952,930  60,306,194 

Lanka ORIX Leasing Company PLC  28,745,109  25,481,815  9,925,526 

Central Services (Private) Limited  31,183  31,183  7,304 

 131,795,518  128,465,928  70,239,024 

 31 Current tax payables

As at 31 March

Group Company

2014 2014 2013

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Income tax payable  12,576,333  12,576,333  15,344,922 

VAT payable  2,616,890  2,616,890  9,514,312 

NBT payable  2,307,084  1,860,369  1,757,024 

Other tax payable  780,928  4,795  4,795 

 18,281,234  17,058,386  26,621,053 

 32.    Maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities - Group

32.1  Maturity analysis of financial liabilities - Group

For the year ended 

31st March 2014
Note

 Carrying 

amount 

 Gross cash 

inflow 

(outflow) 

 less 

than one 

month 

 1-3 

months 

 4-12 

months 

 13-60 

months 

 > 60 

months 

Bank overdra�s  23.2  8,783,756  8,783,756  8,783,756  -    -    -    -   

Interest bearing borrowings

Finance lease liabilities  27.1  1,991,071  2,123,760  -    265,470  796,410  1,061,880  -   

Long-term borrowings  27.2  2,040,000,000  2,040,000,000  -    -    540,000,000  -    1,500,000,000 

Other financial liabilities  30  225,835,595  225,835,595  -    216,731,599  9,103,995  -    -   

 2,274,619,350  2,276,743,111  8,783,756  216,997,069  549,900,405  1,061,880  1,500,000,000 
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32.2  Maturity analysis of financial assets - Group 

For the year ended  

31st March 2014
Note

 Carrying 

amount 

 Gross cash 

inflow 

(outflow) 

 less than 

one month 

 1-3 

months 

 4-12 

months 

 13-60 

months 

 > 60 

months 

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents  23.1  109,642,294  109,642,294  109,642,294  -    -    -    -   

Investment Securities

Available-for-sale investment 

securities
 19.1  661,443  661,443  -    -    -    661,443  -   

Trade and Other Current Assets

Financial Assets  21  322,691,552  322,691,552  -    308,985,835  13,705,717  -    -   

 432,995,290  432,995,291  109,642,294  308,985,835  13,705,717  661,443  -   

 33.    Maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities - Company

33.1   Maturity analysis of financial assets - Company 

For the year ended   

31st March 2014
Note

 Carrying 

amount 

 Gross cash 

inflow 

(outflow) 

 less than 

one month 

 1-3 

months 

 4-12 

months 

 13-60 

months 

 > 60 

months 

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents  23.1  72,473,868  72,473,868  72,473,868  -    -    -    -   

Investment Securities

Available-for-sale investment 

securities
 19.1  661,443  661,443  -    -    -    661,443  -   

Trade and Other Current Assets

Financial Assets  21  261,638,734  261,638,734  -    247,933,016  13,705,717  -    -   

334,774,045  334,774,045  72,473,868  247,933,016  13,705,717  661,443  -   

For the year ended

31 March 2013
Note

 Carrying 

amount 

 Gross cash 

inflow 

(outflow) 

 less than 

one month 

 1-3 

months 
 4-12 months 

 13-60 

months 

 > 60 

months 

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents  23.1  65,293,117  65,293,117  65,293,117  -    -    -    -   

Investment Securities

Available-for-sale investment 

securities
 19.1  672,017  672,017  -    -    -    672,017  -   

Loans and receivables 19.2 8,550,307 8,550,307 - - - 8,550,307

Trade and Other Current Assets

Financial Assets  19.0  191,640,119  191,640,119  -    166,601,637 25,038,482   -  -   

 266,155,560   266,155,560  65,293,117  166,601,638 25,038,482    9,222,324  -   
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33.2 Maturity analysis of financial liabilities- Company

For the year ended  

31st March 2014
Note

 Carrying 

amount 

 Gross cash 

inflow 

(outflow) 

 less than 

one month 
 1-3 months 

 4-12 

months 

 13-60 

months 

 > 60 

months 

Bank overdra�s  23.2  8,783,756  8,783,756  8,783,756  -    -    -    -   

Interest bearing borrowings

Long-term borrowings  27.2  1,880,000,000  1,880,000,000  -    -    380,000,000  1,500,000,000  -   

Other financial liabilities  30  202,934,979  202,934,979  -    194,697,830  8,237,148  -    -   

 2,091,718,735   2,091,718,735  8,783,756  194,697,830  388,237,148  1,500,000,000  -   

For the year ended  

31st March 2013
Note

 Carrying 

amount 

 Gross cash 

inflow 

(outflow) 

 less than 

one month 
 1-3 months 

 4-12 

months 

 13-60 

months 

 > 60 

months 

Bank overdra�s  23.2  13,737,805  13,737,805  13,737,805  -    -    -    -   

Interest bearing borrowings

Long-term borrowings  27.2  5,000,000  5,000,000  -    3,000,000  2,000,000  -    -   

Other financial liabilities  30  154,236,744  154,236,744  -    150,817,667  3,419,077  -    -   

 172,974,549  172,974,549  13,737,805  153,817,667  5,419,077  -    -   

34.  Changes in classification

 During the current year, company reclassified certain prior year figures in the statement of comprehensive income as describe bellow.

Company

2013 Prior 

Classification

Rs.

Re Classification

Rs.

2013

Re Classification

Rs.

Other income  49,563, 467  (39,723,947)  9,839,520 

Net finance cost (8,897,339) 39,723,947 30,826,608 

Re classification of  interest income from deposits and government securities, which was previously shown as other income of statement 

comprehensive income

35.    Commitments and contingencies 

There are no material capital commitments and contingent liabilities as at 31st March 2014 based on the available information, the    

management is of the view that there are no material litigation or claims that could have material impact on the financial position of the 

company or lead to disclosure in the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2014.

36.    Subsequent events

 There have been no material events occurring a�er the reporting date that require  adjustments to or disclosures in the financial statements.

37.    Assets pledge 

 The following assets have been pledge as securities for long.

Nature of assets Nature of loans Amount pledge

Mortgage over hotel premises depicted in Plan No. 4491 

dated 7th February 2014

Term Loan - CBK-13-000-704  1,500,000,000

        

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS
�CONTD�



56

Company

2014
 Rs.

2013
 Rs. 

Fund transfers in Lanka ORIX Leasing Company PLC  379,896,000  -   

Fund transfers out Lanka ORIX Leasing Company PLC  582,186,789  -   

Expenses shared Lanka ORIX Leasing Company PLC  93,408,017  20,405,760 

LOLC Leisure Limited  4,664,679  10,771,256 

Central Services (Private) Limited  72,532  4,492,745 

Palm Garden Hotels PLC  -    10,141,244 

Riverina Hotels PLC  23,000  89,774 

Riverina Resorts (Private) Limited  2,107,752  -   

Investments in subsidiaries Dickwella Resorts (Private) Limited 1,507,500,000  -   

Assets transferred Lanka ORIX Leasing Company PLC  -    2,625,000 

Palm Garden Hotels PLC  -    6,500,000 

Loan granted Palm Garden Hotels PLC  -    285,705,378 

Dickwella Resorts (Private) Limited  -    107,118,393 

Loan obtained Seylan Bank PLC 1,500,000,000  -   

Brown & Company PLC  130,000,000  -   

Dividend paid Palm Garden Hotels PLC  7,807,642  4,879,776 

Interest charged on current account LOLC Leisure Limited  11,963,026  -   

Lanka ORIX Leasing Company PLC  126,128,662  -   

Interest received on loans Palm Garden Hotels PLC  47,855,647  3,468,483 

Dickwella Resorts (Private) Limited  17,942,329  1,523,869 

Management fee paid LOLC Leisure Limited  23,953,116  42,955,395 

38.     Related party disclosures

38.1   Transactions with key management personnel
  

According to Sri Lanka Accounting Standard (LKAS) 24  “Related Party Disclosures”, Key Management Personnel, are those having 
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity. Accordingly, the Board of Directors 
(including executive and non-executive Directors), personnel hold designation of Divisional General Manager and above positions 
and their immediate family member have been classified as Key Management Personnel of the Company.
         
The immediate family member is defined as spouse or dependent. Dependent is defined as anyone who depends on the respective 

Director for more than 50% of his/her financial needs.

 Key management personnel compensation

For the year ended 31 March
2014
 Rs. 

2014
 Rs. 

2013
 Rs. 

Short term Employment benefits

Includes:

Directors' Fees  4,174,524    2,575,139    14,886,858   

 2,575,139    2,575,139    14,886,858

38.2    Transactions with related parties

The Company carries out transactions in the ordinary course of its business with parties who are defined as related parties in Sri 
Lanka Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures”. The Pricing applicable to such transactions is based on the assessment 
of the risk and pricing model of the Company and is comparable with what is applied to transactions between the Company and its 
unrelated Customers.
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38.3 The directors of the Eden Hotel Lanka PLC are the Directors of the following related companies 

Name of the Director

Lanka 
ORIX Leasing  

Company
PLC

LOLC 
Leisure 

Limited**

Palm 
Garden 

Hotels PLC

Tropical 
Villas 
(Pvt) 

Limited

Dickwella 
Resorts 

(Pvt) 
Limited

Central 
Services 

(Pvt) 
Limited

Southern 
Cleaners 

(Pvt) 
Limited

W.D.K. Jayawardena Yes - Yes - -  -  - 

Mrs. K.U. Amarasinghe Yes - Yes - -  -  - 

D.S.K. Amarasekara  -  Yes Yes Yes  -  Yes  Yes

J.M. Swaminathan  -  - Yes  -  -  -  - 

Prof. M.T.A.Furkhan  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

S. Furkhan  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Name of the Company Nature of the Relationship 

Lanka ORIX Leasing Company PLC Ultimate Parent

LOLC Leisure Limited** Intermediate Parent

Palm Garden Hotels PLC Immediate Parent

Tropical Villas (Pvt) Limited Affiliate

Dickwella Resorts (Pvt) Limited Affiliate

Central Services (Pvt) Limited Associate

Sourthern Cleaners (Pvt) Limited Affiliate

**  Name changed to Browns Hotels and Resorts Ltd on 10th June 2014.

38.4 Related party transactions exceeding 10% of the equity or 5% of the total assets of the entity as per Audited 

Financial Statements. 

Name of the

 related party

Relationship Nature of the 

transactions

Date Amount in 

Rs.

Rationale for 

entering

Carrying Amount

2014

Rs.

2013 

Rs.

 Palm Garden 
 Hotels PLC

Immediate 
Parent

Loans 
granted 

Mar - 2013 285,705,378 Working Capital 
Requirement 

285,705,378 285,705,378

Lanka ORIX 
Leasing Co.PLC

Ultimate  
Parent

Loans 
granted

Sep - 2013 363,000,000
Working Capital 
Requirement

- -

Dickwella 
Resorts (Pvt) Ltd

Subsidiary Acquisition Nov - 2013 1,500,000,000 - 1,500,000,000 -

Seylan Bank PLC Related
Loans 
granted

Nov - 2013 1,500,000,000
Working Capital 
Requirement

1,500,000,000 -

Lanka ORIX 
Leasing Co.PLC

Ultimate  
Parent

Loans 
settlement

Mar - 2014 380,000,000
Working Capital 
Requirement

- -

38.4 Terms and borrowings

Borrowings Terms 
Interest 

Rate
Currency 

Principal 
Amount

Year of 
Maturity

31st March 
2014

31st March  
2013

DFCC bank loan Fixed 6% LKR 60,000,000 2013 - 5,000,000

Seylan bank loan Floating 
3 months 

AWPLR + 2%
LKR 1,500,000,000 2016 1,500,000,000 -
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39. Financial risk management

 The Group has exposure to the following risks from financial 
 instruments:
 1) Credit risk
 2) Liquidity risk 
 3) Market risk
 4) Operational risk

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure 
to each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives, policies 
and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the 
Group’s management of capital.

Risk management framework

The board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment 
and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework. The 
Board has established the audit committee, which is responsible 
for developing and monitoring risk management policies in their 
specified areas. All Board committees have both executive and non-
executive members and report regularly to the board of directors on 
their activities.

The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify 
and analyze the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk 
limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. 
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to 
reflect changes in market conditions, products and services offered. 
The Company, through its training and management standards and 
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control 
environment, in which all employees understand their roles and 
obligations.

The Company Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring 
compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and 
procedures, and for reviewing the adequacy of the risk management 
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Company 
Audit Committee is assisted in these functions by Enterprise Risk 
Management division (ERM). ERM undertakes both regular and 
ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the 
results of which are reported to the Company Audit Committee.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer 
or counterparty fails to meet its contractual obligations. For 
risk management reporting purposes the Group considers and 
consolidates all elements of credit risk exposure.

The Group’s/Company’s maximum  exposure  to credit risk   on  
trade receivables  as at the year-end   based on the  carrying value  
in the  statement of  financial  position is given  below .  

Group Company

2014
Rs.

2014
Rs.

2013
Rs.

As at 31st March 221,429,709 158,059,648 133,035,470 

Management of credit risk

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the 
individual characteristics of each customer. However, management 
also considers various statistics and characteristics of the customer 
base, including the default risk, business relationships with due 
attention given to past performances, stability in the industry and 
creditworthiness, as these factors may have an influence on credit 
risk.

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according 
to their business volumes and consider separately for granting 
credit limits. Based on the volume of the transaction and based 
on the relationship, the customers are ranked. For the customers 
who identified as “High Risks Customers”, sales are made once they 
made an advance or full payment.

The group has established a credit policy under which each new 
customer is analyzed individually for creditworthiness. Credit limits 
are established for each customer and these limits are reviewed 
frequently.

The following steps also taken to reduce the credit risk.
1)     Outstanding credits are followed up on a daily basis.
2)     Steps taken to obtain advances from travel agents and tour  
       operators wherever possible.
3)     Opting for legal action for customers defaulting settlements. 
 Regular audits of hotel and Company credit processes are  
 undertaken by ERM.
 
Impairment

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents 
its estimate of incur losses in respect of trade receivables.  The 
main component of this allowance is a specific loss component that 
relates to individually significant exposures based on aging of the 
outstanding.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in 
meeting obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are 
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Management of liquidity risk

The Group’s  approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far 
as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its 
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, 
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the 
Group’s reputation.

The Company/Group continuously prepares and monitors rolling 
cash flow forecasts to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet 
operational needs.  Regular reviews are also carried out to check 
actual performance against   budgeted targets.

As at the reporting date, the company has a higher liability in relation 
to the external borrowings when compared to the previous financial 
year. This is mainly due to the long term loan obtained from Seylan 
bank to acquire Dickwella Resorts (Pvt) Limited and the  short term 
loans obtained to meet the working capital requirements.
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Group Company

2014

Rs.

2014

Rs.

2013 

Rs.

Non Current 

Portion of 

Interest Bearing 

Borrowings

1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000 -

Non Current 

Portion of Finance 

Lease  Liabilities

1,027,381 - - 

Trade Payables 35,503,239 15,933,731 13,642,765

Current Portion of 

Interest Bearing 

Borrowings

540,000,000 380,000,000 5,000,000

Current Portion 

of Finance Lease  

Liabilities

963,690 - -

Bank Overdra�s 8,783,756 8,783,756 13,737,805

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as 

interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates and credit 

spreads (not relating to changes in the obligor’s/issuer’s credit 

standing) will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings 

of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management 

is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable 

parameters, while optimizing the return on risk.

The Group being  involved in hoteliering  operates internationally  

and is exposed to  foreign  exchange risk  arising from  various  

currency  exposures primarily  with respect of the US dollar, Uk 

pound and  Euro. More than 90% of room contracts are entered into 

in foreign currencies and invoiced in SLR using the conversion rates 

established by the industry. Purchases such as import of capital 

goods for hotel operations are also transacted in foreign currency. 

The Company very closely works with group treasury division and 

obtains their advice to reduce impact on foreign currency exposure.

In order to reduce the Foreign exchange risk, the Group implements 

the following strategies.

1) Negotiation of room rates and enters into agreements in 

strong currencies.

2) Matching inflows and outflows of the same currency to the 

extent that is permitted by prevailing laws.

3) Monitors exchange rates on a daily basis and use best rates for 

foreign currency conversions.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of fluctuation of the value or cash flows 

of an instrument due to changes in the market interest rates.

In order to reduce the Interest rate risk, the Group implements the 

following strategies.

1) Debt has been structured through fixed interest rates in order 

to manage the volatility in the market.

2) Work towards the low gearing ratio.

3) Proper mechanism to monitor the fluctuations in interest 

rates.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a 

wide variety of causes associated with the Group’s involvement with 

regard to operational activities, including processes, personnel, 

technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than 

credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal 

and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of 

corporate behavior.

The Group’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance 

the avoidance of financial losses and damage to the Group’s 

reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control 

procedures that restrict initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation 

of controls to address operational risk is assigned to senior 

management. This responsibility is supported by the development 

of overall standards for the management of operational risk in the 

following areas:

1) Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including 

the independent authorization of transactions;

2) Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of 

transactions;

3) Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

4) Documentation of controls and procedures;

5) Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational 

risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and   

procedures to address the risks identified;

6) Requirements for the reporting of operational losses and 

proposed remedial action;

7) Development of contingency plans;

8) Training and professional development; and

9) Ethical and business standards
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SUMMARIZED 

QUARTERLY 

STATISTICS

Statement of comprehensive income 2012/2013

For the 3 months ended 30-June 30-Sept 31-Dec 31-Mar

Gross Income  40,920  55,699  187,304  314,921 

Cost of Sale  (7,999)  (13,887)  (35,848)  (38,521)

Other Income/ (Expenses)  17,711  27,477  15,101  43,430 

Interest cost  (62)  (5,718)  (18,699)  (114,391)

Profit before operating expenses  50,570  63,571  147,858  205,439 

Other operating expenses  (69,384)  (78,336)  (113,822)  (177,752)

Results from operating activities  (18,814)  (14,765)  34,036  27,687 

Share Results of Associates 51  44  (95)  153 

Profit/ (Loss) before Taxation  (18,763)  (14,721)  33,941  27,840 

Income tax expense  (698)  334  (2,900)  (10,235)

Nett profit a�er tax  (19,461)  (14,387)  31,041  17,605 

Statement of financial position (Rs.’000)

As at 30-June 30-Sept 31-Dec 31-Mar

Assets  2,911,339  3,032,394  4,668,701  4,929,543 

Liabilities  569,387  721,738  2,327,121  2,380,745 

Net assets  2,341,952  2,310,656  2,341,580  2,547,797 

Share capital  528,000  528,000  528,000  528,000 

Reserves  1,813,952  1,782,656  1,813,580  2,020,797 

Share capital and reserves  2,341,952  2,310,656  2,341,580  2,548,797 

STATEMENT OF 

VALUE ADDED

2010

Rs. (000)

2011

Rs. (000)

2012

Rs. (000)

2013

Rs. (000)

2014

Rs. (000)

Turnover(Gross) 498,002 648,032 763,340 876,722 707,012 

Add: Other Income 8,121 5,186 22,825 43,896 17,782 

506,123 653,218 786,165 920,618 724,794 

Less: Value Bought Out

Materials & Services 336,162 357,643 433,131 474,708 342,451 

Value Added 169,961 295,575 353,034 445,910 382,343 

Distributed as follows:

To Employees as Remuneration 51,922 60,680 58,557 58,373 77,285 

To Government as Taxes 57,681 79,672 102,111 117,882 92,560 

To Providers of Loan Capital as Interest 20,291 10,526 3,028 8,897 137,543 

To Shareholders  -  -  -  -  -   

Retained with the Business - Reserves 3,018 101,461 146,174 211,854 14,798 

                                              - Depreciation / Amortization   37,049 43,236 43,164 48,904 60,156 

Total 169,961 295,575 353,034 445,910 382,342 
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FORM OF 

PROXY

EDEN HOTEL LANKA PLC  
FORM OF PROXY

I/We………………………………....……………………….……………………………………………………………………………………………….…….……………………………

of…………………………………..…………….……………..…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

being a member/members of the above named Company hereby appoint …………………….…..……………………………………………………………………

…………………………………………………………………………………………………….of……………….………………………………………………………………………………

………………………........................................................whom failing 

Waduthanthri Darshan Kapila Jayawardena   of Colombo or failing him
Mrs. Kalsha Upekha Amarasinghe    of Colombo or failing her
Don Soshan Kamantha Amarasekera    of Colombo or failing him
Deshamanya Prof. Mohamed Thassim Ahamed Furkhan  of Colombo or failing him
Stefan Furkhan         of Colombo or failing him
Jayanta Mootatamby Swaminathan    of Colombo 

as my/our proxy  to represent me/us and vote on my/our behalf at the Twenty Second Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held 
on  Wednesday, 30th July 2014 and at any adjournment thereof and at every poll which may  be taken in consequence of the aforesaid 
Meeting. 

1 To receive and consider the Report of the Directors and Statement of Accounts for the year ended 
  31st March, 2014 with the Report of the Auditors thereon.
  
2 To re-elect as a Director D.S.K. Amarasekera who retires by rotation in terms of Articles 86 of the Article of 

Association of the Company. 

3 To re-elect as a Director Prof. M.T. A. Furkhan who retires in terms of Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 
7 of 2007.

4 To re-elect as a Director  J.M. Swaminathan who retires in terms of Section 210 of the Companies Act No.7 
of 2007. 

  
5 To re-appoint as auditors KPMG, Chartered Accountants at a remuneration to be fixed by the Directors.

 
  

  
 dated this  …………………. day of  ………………………..2014 

     

 ………………………………………
 Signature of Shareholder

NOTE:
1) A proxy need not be a member of the Company

2) Instruction as to completion appear on the reverse hereof

For  Against
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INSTRUCTIONS AS TO COMPLETION

1 Please return the completed Form of Proxy a�er filling in legibly your full name and address, signing on the space 
provided and filling in the date of signature.

2 The completed Form of Proxy should be deposited at the registered office of the Company, 100/1 Sri Jayawardenapura 

Mawatha, Rajagiriya not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the holding of the Meeting.




